
Property / Regeneration Briefing  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Property / Regeneration Briefing to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Monday, 28 November 2022 

 
TIME:  3.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public)  

 

 

3a Salford Youth Zone Project  
 

(Pages 1 - 88) 

4   Public Briefing Items  

 

The following items are for the primary purpose of providing members 

of the public with all relevant information on the respective matters, 
other than those elements, which in accordance with the relevant 
sections of the Local Government Act 1972, remain confidential and 

require that any arising decision is taken in Part 2 of the agenda. 
 

 

4a Ryall Avenue South, Ordsall and The Green, Clifton (see item 6a)  
 

(Pages 89 - 96) 

4b Land at Crompton Street, Walkden and Highfield Road, Little Hulton 

and Associated Supported Tenancy Schemes (see item 6b)  
 

(Pages 97 - 106) 

4c Land at Coscos and Former Brackley Golf Course Little Hulton (verbal 
update)  
 

 

5   Exclusion of the Public  

 

 

6   Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public)  

 

 

6a Ryall Avenue South, Ordsall and The Green, Clifton  (Pages 107 - 110) 

Public Document Pack



 

 
6b Land at Crompton Street, Walkden and Highfield Road, Little Hulton 

and Associated Supported Tenancy Schemes  
 

(Pages 111 - 116) 

7   Any other business  

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013 
Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk 



 1 

 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF  

Lead Members for Adults, Health and Wellbeing and for Housing, 
Property & Regeneration   

 

TO 

Property and Regeneration  

28th November 2022 

 

TITLE: Land at Crompton Street, Walkden & Highfield Road, Little Hulton 
and additional financial support to facilitate the delivery of two 

supported tenancy schemes in Walkden and Little Hulton. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

The City Mayor is recommended to:  
 

Note the proposals below and the terms as set out in the body of this report and note 
that the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval will be 
considered elsewhere on the agenda.  

 
1. Approve the proposed variations to the agreed Heads of Terms for the disposal of the subject 

sites on the terms set out in the report. 
2. Delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Place and the Section 151 officer to negotiate 

and finalise the commercial arrangements and all other necessary ancillary agreements to allow 
the completion of the land disposals as detailed in this report.  

3. Approve the allocation of funding from Salford City Council’s Disabled Facilities Grant allocation 
and an additional contribution from Salford City Council.  

4. Authorise the Shared Legal Service to complete all necessary documentation and to take all 
steps which are required to give effect to the above recommendations. 
 

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



 2 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The service and finance strategy for two supported tenancy schemes at Crompton Street in 

Walkden and Highfield Road in Little Hulton, was approved by Adult Commissioning Committee 
in September 2019 (section 1.01). 

 
The two schemes are planned to be developed in the Walkden and Little Hulton areas of Salford 

on land that is owned by the Council. One scheme will accommodate 14 people and will be for 
people currently living in Salford who might be moving through transition arrangements (from 

children’s to adult services) and adults already living in Salford with a learning 
disability/complex need. The second scheme will accommodate 8 people and support the 

repatriation of existing and future out of area placements. The two schemes will also provide a 
total of 12 general needs homes with an option for Derive to purchase five general needs units 

at Crompton St.   
 

To facilitate this City Mayor approved the disposal of the land to Great Places Housing Group 
on 24th August 2020. A copy of the 2020 City Mayor report providing full background to the 

proposals is provided at Annex 2.  
 

Due to financial viability challenges associated with significant build cost inflation the previously 
approved commercial Heads of Terms for the land sales have been subject to renegotiation in 
order to protect scheme delivery. 
 
The total scheme costs and how they will be funded are set out in the Part 2 report. This 
includes funding from Great Places, Homes England, GMCA through the brownfield land fund 
and Salford City Council. 
 
The report seeks approval to the proposed variations to the commercial Heads of Terms and 

the allocation of additional funding to ensure the viability of the scheme.  
 

 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
 
2020 City Mayor Report  

 

 

KEY DECISION: YES 
 

 

Page 2



 3 

 

DETAILS: 
 
1. General  Introduction and Background 

 
1.01 The service and finance strategy for two supported tenancy schemes at Crompton 

Street in Walkden and Highfield Road in Little Hulton, was approved by Adult Commissioning 
Committee in September 2019: 

 
Agenda for Adult Commissioning Committee on Wednesday, 11 September 2019, 3.00 pm • 

Salford City Council 
 

1.02 In summary the strategy set out that Salford City Council and CCG (as was), working 
with Salford Care Organisation (part of the Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust) and 

Great Places Housing proposed to develop two specialist Supported Housing schemes to deliver 
additional capacity to support people with a learning disability and complex needs to live 

independently with support to meet their care needs in a Salford ‘home’.  
 

1.03 The report set out a service and financial feasibility assessment of the proposal that 
appraised the strategic appropriateness, financial viability, quality and anticipated outcomes of 
the service and accommodation model for the Salford care system, and Salford people who 

might be supported through this proposal.  
 

1.04 The two schemes are planned to be developed in the Walkden and Little Hulton areas 
of Salford on land that is owned by the Council. One scheme will accommodate 14 people and 

will be for people currently living in Salford who might be moving through transition 
arrangements (from children’s to adult services) and adults already living in Salford with a 

learning disability/complex need. The second scheme will accommodate 8 people and support 
the repatriation of existing and future out of area placements. Salford City Council will hold 

nominations rights on both schemes for the stated accommodation and service commissioning 
purpose of the schemes. 

 
1.05 The quality impact of the schemes will be positive and provide people with more 

targeted support as well as allowing Salford people to move back into the city. The 
accommodation will be accessible, adapted, technology enabled, and purpose built around the 

needs of the people who will live in the schemes. 
 
1.06 The financial impact of the schemes shows a potential annual cashable cost saving of 
(excluding growth) based on full occupancy.  
 
1.07 Due to the impact of Covid 19 and rising construction costs the build programme, 
anticipated to commence during 2020 was delayed. The significant build cost inflation has led 

to a number of financial viability challenges. The previously approved commercial Heads of 
Terms for the land transactions have been subject to renegotiation in order to protect scheme 
delivery. The primary variations are in relation to land price and lease terms length following 
detailed viability review and the consideration of relevant market evidence. It is now 

Page 3

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=254&MId=2273&Ver=4
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=254&MId=2273&Ver=4


 4 

anticipated that, subject to final approvals, the build programme will commence later in 2022 
and take 12-18 months to deliver. 

 
1.08  The development will be subject to an open book review upon completion and should 

costs savings be made against current forecasts these will be passed onto the City Council in 
full. 

1.09  In addition to the reduced land price we have also provisionally agreed the grant of a 
longer 999-year lease term to enable prospective purchasers of the Shared Ownership homes 

to access Help to Buy funding. 
 

1.10  Derive also have an option to acquire the five social rent affordable units – a mix of 2 
and 3 bed homes - being delivered on the Crompton Street site. Great Places have provided a 
cost for the purchase of these five homes, but the scheme does not stack up financially for 
Derive at a social or affordable rent with working capital required from Derive to support the 
scheme. It is unlikely, unless costs are significantly reduced that Derive will be in a position to 

purchase these units. 
 

1.11 Commissioners are required to draw up service specifications for the Care Quality 
Commission regulated care service at both schemes and Salford Care Organisation will be 

responsible for running the procurement process. This process will take place alongside the 
build programme. 

 
1.12 Two options were considered in the strategy proposal, option one being a ‘do nothing’ 

scenario and option two was the scheme and service development proposal. Option two was 
approved by Adult Commissioning Committee in September 2019 on the basis of increased 

service quality/improved outcomes for people and that potential to secure cashable savings 
over time. 

 
1.13 Both schemes have secured planning approval: 

 
Highfield Road Planning Approval – June 2021 

 
(Public Pack)Agenda Document for Planning and Transportation Regulatory Panel, 03/06/2021 
09:30 (salford.gov.uk) 
 
Crompton Street Planning Approval – March 2022 
 
Division (salford.gov.uk) 
 
2. Capital  Strategy Position 
 
2.01 The total scheme costs and how they will be funded are set out in the Part 2 report. 

Costs have increased significantly as a result of build cost inflation and additional 
funding sources have had to be identified to ensure a viable scheme. The funding will 

come from a variety from Great Places, Homes England, GMCA through the brownfield 
land fund and Salford City Council and   

 

Page 4

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g4533/Public%20reports%20pack%20Thursday%2003-Jun-2021%2009.30%20Planning%20and%20Transportation%20Regulatory%20Panel.pdf?T=10
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g4533/Public%20reports%20pack%20Thursday%2003-Jun-2021%2009.30%20Planning%20and%20Transportation%20Regulatory%20Panel.pdf?T=10
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/s45058/5a%2021%2076773%20FUL%20Crosby%20Avenue%20Crompton%20Street.pdf


 5 

3. DFG - Introduction 
 

3.01 The Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) is ring-fenced capital funding for the provision of 
home adaptations to help older and disabled people to live as independently and safely as 

possible in their homes. Where agreed locally a portion of the grant may also be used for wider 
social care capital projects 

 
3.02 Home adaptations are changes made to the fabric and fixtures of a home to make it 

safer and easier to get around and to use for everyday tasks like cooking and bathing. Adapting 
a home environment can help restore or enable independent living, privacy, confidence and 

dignity for individuals and their families. Adaptations can include the installation of stair-lifts, 
level access showers and wet-rooms, wash and dry toilets, ramps, wider doors, and, in some 
instances, bespoke home extensions to existing dwellings as well as improvements to access to 
and from gardens. Heating systems, insulation and telecare and assistive technology (where it 
is capital) can be other forms of adaptations. 

 
3.03 Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) are capital grants that are available to people of all ages 

and in all housing tenures (i.e. whether renting privately, from a social landlord or council, or 
owner-occupiers) to contribute to the cost of adaptations. They are administered by local 

housing authorities in England and enable eligible disabled people to continue living sa fely and 
independently at home. This includes people with autism, those with a mental health condition, 

physical disabilities, learning disabilities, cognitive impairments such as dementia, and 
progressive conditions such as Motor Neurone Disease. It includes those living with age-related 

disabilities and can also include those with terminal illness. The DFG is one of a range of housing 
support measures that a local authority can use to help enable people to live independently 

and safely at home and in their communities. 
 

3.04 The latest published DFG guidance (March 2022) advises local authorities in England 
how they can effectively and efficiently deliver DFG funded adaptations to best serve the needs 

of local older and disabled people. It does not make changes in policy, but instead brings 
together and sets out in one place existing policy frameworks, legislative duties, and powers, 

together with recommended best practice, to help local authorities provide a best practice 
adaptation service to disabled tenants and residents in their area. 
 
3.05 A suitable home can help disabled people of all ages to build and sustain their 
independence and maintain connections in their community. There are currently many older 
and disabled people living in homes that make it difficult for them to do everyday tasks like 
washing and using the bathroom, cooking or getting out and about easily. Homes may be poorly 
designed for older age or changes in care and support needs. In 2019-20, around 1.9 million 
households in England had one or more people with a health condition that required 
adaptations to their home. 
 
3.06 DFG enables more people to live independently and healthily in their own homes for 
longer, with fewer people staying in hospital unnecessarily or moving to residential care 

prematurely when that is not where they want to live. Adaptations can reduce the amount of 
formal care and support an individual may require, as well as often making the difference 

between being able to continue living in their current home or not. 

Page 5



 6 

 
3.07 Since 2015, Government has provided funding for the DFG through the Better Care 

Fund (BCF) in recognition of the importance of ensuring adaptations are part of an integrated 
approach to housing, health and social care locally, and to help promote joined up local person-

centred approaches to supporting communities. 
 

3.08 A portion of DFG funding can be retained to pay for social care and housing capital 
elements of joined up health, social care and housing projects. Local authorities and local health 

and care commissioners can also choose to add to Government funding for home adaptations 
from their own budgets. 

 
3.09 Local Authorities may decide to spend Government funding for the DFG in three ways: 
 

• Approving DFGs in accordance with the Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration 
Act 1996 (the 1996 Act) (see Appendix B: The legislation) 

 
• Providing housing assistance in accordance with a locally published Housing Assistance 

Policy under RRO powers (see Chapter 3:). 
 

• Using a portion of the DFG funding for other social care capital funding purposes. 
 

3.10 Local Authorities can apply a mix of these options to meet local priorities but should 
consider that: 

 
• the local housing authority has a statutory duty under the 1996 Act to provide 

adaptations for those who qualify for a DFG. 
 

• the primary role of Government funding is for the provision of home adaptations to 
help eligible people safely access their home and key facilities within it. Government 

funding is via a capital grant so must not be used for any revenue purposes. Local 
authorities are responsible for correctly classifying expenditure in their statutory 

accounts.  
 

• Government funding for the Disabled Facilities Grant is intended to fund adaptations 
for owner occupiers, private tenants, or tenants of private registered providers (housing 
associations). Eligible council tenants can apply for a DFG in the same way as any other 
applicant. However local housing authorities with a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
should self-fund home adaptations for council tenants through this account. A provision 
was made for expenditure in the HRA as a 'Disabled Facilities Allowance' in the 2012-13 
self-financing settlement, alongside information on how to calculate it in subsequent 
years. The same applies to applications from tenants living in dwellings managed by an 
Arms-Length Management Organisation (ALMO) but owned by the local authority. 

 
3.11 Where a portion of the DFG funding is used for other social care capital projects this 

must be agreed as part of, and spent in accordance with, the approved local BCF spending plan 
that was developed in keeping with the BCF Policy Framework and Planning Requirements.  

 

Page 6



 7 

3.12 Local authorities are encouraged to consider the level of demand for adaptations locally 
and use this freedom only to fund wider projects which are likely to reduce overall demand for 

DFGs, so that more people can receive the adaptations that they need. Good examples of wider 
social care capital projects include improving toilet/showering facilities in temporary 

accommodation to help support disabled people including those sleeping rough, or 
contributing to the cost of building accessible housing for disabled people in circumstances 

where this would be more cost effective than adapting a current property.  
 

4. Common parts 
 

4.01 DFG applications can be made to fund adaptations to the common parts of buildings 
containing one or more flats. This can include the structure and exterior of the building, routine 
parts of the building such as the front door and paths, as well as common interior areas of the 
building including emergency/fire exits, stairwells and passageways.  
 

5. DFG Submission 
 

5.01 Great Places Housing Association has submitted a DFG application to Salford City 
Council for consideration against the terms and national guidance for DFG, for the two 

supported tenancy scheme proposals at Highfield Road and Crompton Street.  
 

5.02 Great Places has completed a detailed appraisal of the scheme plans and set out those 
elements of the plans that are applicable for consideration for DFG funding.  

 
5.03 As noted above (section 3) the terms of the DFG grant, which is allocated as part of the 

Better Care Fund, also requires local authorities to note any plan to use the DFG to support 
‘other social care capital projects’ in the local Better Care Fund spending plan. This DFG 

application has been included in Salford’s Better Care Fund spending plan for 2022/23.  
 

5.04 This application has been reviewed by Salford City Council officers and it is confirmed 
that the application meets the terms of the DFG grant conditions and associated national 

guidance. Council officers are recommending that the DFG grant application is approved.  
 
6.  Additional  Capital  balance  
 
6.01 It is proposed that the remaining deficit will be split between Great Places Housing 
Group and Salford City Council on a 50:50 basis.    
 
7. Head Of Terms 
 
7.01 Due to financial viability challenges associated with significant build cost inflation the  

previously approved commercial Heads of Terms for the land transactions have been subject 

to renegotiation in order to protect scheme delivery. The primary variations are in relation to 

land price and lease terms length.  

 

7.02 Following detailed viability review and the consideration of relevant market evidence 

Page 7



 8 

Property Services have provisionally agreed a variation to the previously approved sale price.  

Full details are provided in Part 2 version of the report.  

 

7.03 The development will be subject to an open book review upon completion and should 

costs savings be made against current forecasts these will be passed onto the City Council in 

full.  
  

7.04 In addition to the reduced land price we have also provisionally agreed the grant of a  

longer 999-year lease term to enable prospective purchasers of the Shared Ownership homes 

to access Help to Buy funding. 

 

7.05 Contractual provisions on use will also ensure that all the units/dwellings will be 
delivered as Supported or Affordable Housing units, with the mix to be agreed with the City 
Council’s Housing, this provides suitable assurances on the future use of the homes to the 
Intended purpose as set out in this report and will protect the Council financial investment into 
the delivery of the scheme 
 
 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
Integrated Care 

Regeneration 
Great 8 - Housing  

Great 8 - Economic Development 
 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N.A. 
There are no equality impact issues arising directly as a consequence of this report.   

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
Medium:  
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Provided in the Part 2 version of the report. 

 
 

Page 8



 9 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
 
Provided in the Part 2 version of the report 

 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N.A. 
There are no procurement considerations associated with the proposed variation to the 
commercial Heads of Terms. 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N.A. 
There are no HR implications arising from this proposal. 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N.A. 
There are no Climate Change considerations associated with the proposed variation to the 
commercial Heads of Terms 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

Place 
 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Paul Walsh  TEL NO: 0161 793 2202  
 

 
 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Walkden and Little Hulton 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

ONSIDE YOUTH ZONES - SUMMARY PAPER 
 
AGREEING THE LEGAL RELATIONSHIPS & STRUCTURES 
 
It is important to agree the basic terms of the legal relationships as early as possible so that all 
parties understand both what is expected of them and how their investment in the project will be 
protected. The finer detail of drafting the necessary documents will inevitably take time but 
typical structures and essential terms are summarised below.     
 
1. Lease of the site 

 
A lease of the Youth Zone development site needs to be granted to the new operating charity. 
Basic provisions would include:- 
1.1. A term of 125 years 
1.2. No premium and a peppercorn rent 
1.3. No break clauses but provision for forfeiture in the event of significant breach of covenant 

and/or fundamental failure of the project 
1.4. Strictly limited user clauses (linked to forfeiture provisions) to ensure there is no material 

deviation from the original intended charitable use 
1.5. Step-in rights for OnSide to cover a situation in which the local operating charity fails but 

demand for the Youth Zone remains and OnSide believes it can operate and sustain the 
facility.  

   
2. Development Agreement 

 
This agreement (which may initially be conditional on planning and securing the remaining 
capital) will cover items such as: 
2.1. The agreed contributions to capital and mechanics for payment 
2.2. Permission to enter the site and carry out works to an agreed specification 
2.3. The agreement to grant the lease after practical completion of construction 
2.4. The agreement to enter into the Operational Agreement (see below) after practical 

completion 
2.5. Development plans, specifications and provisions regulating the methods of construction 
2.6. The landowner's title to the property 
2.7. Dispute resolution procedures 
2.8. Freedom of information and confidentiality provisions. 
 

3. Operational Agreement  
 
This agreement will regulate the early years of the project partnership. The principle parties 
will be the new Youth Zone operating charity, the Council and OnSide Youth Zones. It will 
cover summaries of: 
3.1. The Council's support of the project both in general terms and specifically its agreed 

revenue contributions 
3.2. OnSide's contribution to development of the project and ongoing support. 

Page 11



 

3.3. The new Youth Zone charity's obligations in relation to the development and future 
operation of the Youth Zone, including its responsibility to raise the remaining revenue 
requirement. 

3.4. Branding and publicity methods 
3.5. Normal freedom of information, prevention of corruption, confidentiality and dispute 

resolution provisions. 
3.6. Appropriate indemnities and provisions for termination on insolvency or material and 

persistent default. 
 

4. Ancillary legal relationships and documentation 
 
There will be the normal suite of ancillary documents associated with the development 
including: 
 
4.1. Appointments, by the new Youth Zone charity, of the members of the design team 

(providing for novation to the building contractors, where applicable) incorporating 
warranties*, where appropriate. 

4.2. The building contract (JCT design and build format with appropriate amendments) 
incorporating prescribed forms of collateral warranty* to be given by subcontractors who 
are providing any significant element of design.     
 

*Note: the suite of warranties will be assignable for the benefit of the Council in addition to 
the Youth Zone charity, OnSide Youth Zones and The OnSide Foundation.  

 
Legal representatives 
 
An early decision will be made as to who will be appointed to represent the new Youth Zone 
charity in the legal negotiations.  
 
Rob Carter will be the first point of contact on such issues for OnSide Youth Zones.  
 
The Council is asked to nominate its legal representative as soon as possible.  
 
The OnSide Foundation 
 
The OnSide Foundation is an unincorporated charitable trust (Charity No. 1157252). The 
Foundation is the conduit for all capital funding to current projects in development (other than 
the direct grants from Local Authorities). 
 
The OnSide Foundation combines capital funding from multiple grant funders into a single sum 
and offers this grant to the individual Youth Zone charity subject to the terms of a Grant 
Agreement which will secure development and sustained delivery of the project in accordance 
with the OnSide Youth Zone model.  
 
The use of The OnSide Foundation, as a conduit for all capital funding also enables a robust 
system for impact measurement for the benefit of the individual project, the funders and the 
wider OnSide network of Youth Zones. 
 
Network Agreement 
 
There is great strength in the local ‘ownership’ of individual Youth Zones but as the OnSide 
Network expanded over the last 10 years, there was a growing demand for some form of 
agreement to embody the principles of the OnSide model and to provide mechanisms to 
collaborate, learn and support each other and to protect the integrity of the vision. This demand 
came in part from those involved in the existing Youth Zones and also from the diverse funders 

Page 12



 

and supporters of OnSide and our Youth Zone model. Consequently, We worked with the specialist 
charity team at Bates Wells to draft an agreement that was appropriate for the existing Youth 
Zones whilst maintaining our strong ambitions for the growing network. All OnSide Youth Zones 
have completed Network Agreements in similar form and that set the format and standards for all 
new Youth Zones and what it means to be a member of the OnSide Network of Youth Zones with a 
better collaborative structure to maintain high quality in delivery and to further reinforce its 
reputation and success.   
 
As a flavour of the content, the agreement includes provisions for: 
 
• commitments to and supporting delivery of agreed operating standards; 
• collaboration and best practice; 
• support in funding and governance; 
• methods of monitoring, evaluation and performance measurement; 
• information sharing and learning; 
• support and development of staff and volunteers; 
• effective asset management; 
• mechanisms for resolution of disputes; 
• communications and public relations; and 
• all this in a spirit of an open and accountable strategic partnership characterised by cooperation, 

mutual support and respect.  
 

A lot of work was also done across the Network to produce a series of supporting documents 
(which are schedules to the agreement) covering things like: 
 
o excellence and evaluation frameworks; 
o policies for management and escalation of safeguarding and other serious incidents; and 
o brand guidelines, data sharing and licensing of intellectual property rights. 
 
In summary, the Network Agreement is as much a tool-kit as a clear statement of expectations 
and mutual obligations reflecting the aspirations of the parties and both protecting and enhancing 
the growing reputation of the Network and its individual Youth Zones. 
 
 
 
 
  

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  Page 1 

HEADS OF TERMS 
 

Subject to Contract, Agreement for Lease and Development Agreement 
 

Proposed lease of land at Broadwalk, off Belvedere Road, Salford 
 

 
1 LANDLORD: SALFORD CITY COUNCIL 

Salford Civic Centre, 
  Swinton 

Manchester 
M27 5AW 

   
   

2 LANDLORD’S SOLICITOR: To be confirmed 
   

  T:  
  E:  

 

3 TENANT: MANCHESTER YOUTH ZONE - EAST 
HideOut Youth Zone 

1 Queen’s Avenue 
Manchester 

M12 5PX 
 

Telephone No: 0161 511 3777  
email (for this purpose): rob.carter@onsideyouthzones.org 

Company No: 11309137 
Charity Reg No: 1179712 

 

4 TENANT’S SOLICITOR: TEACHER STERN 

37 – 41 Bedford Row, 
London 

WC1R 4JH 
For the attention of Phil Berry  

T: 020 7242 3191 
E: p.berry@teacherstern.com 

   
5 THE PROPERTY: Land at Broadwalk, off Belvedere Road, Salford comprising 

[insert area]m2 or thereabouts and shown edged red on the 
attached plan. 

   
6 RENT: A peppercorn (if demanded) 

 
 

7  TERM: 125 years from the date of Practical Completion of the 
Development.  

   
8 AUTHORISED USE:  Use on a not for profits basis for the purposes of a charity 

formed for the provision of facilities for children and young 
people in the City of Salford and surrounding areas providing 

a universal activity based service complemented by a range 
of targeted support services to help and educate them by 

promoting their full physical, intellectual and social 
potential.  
 

9 COMMUNITY USE The Tenant shall: 

Page 15



  
 Page 2 

 

a) promote the wider community use of the Property to 
engage help and educate children and young people 
up to the age of nineteen (19) (twenty five (25) for 

young people with a disability and/or learning 
difficulty) in the City of Salford and surrounding 

areas through leisure time activities; 

b) at all times use reasonable endeavours to work with 

other appropriate local statutory and voluntary 
organisations to allow children and young people to 

enjoy a range of activities in their leisure time and 
have access to a range of targeted support services;  

c) operate a membership policy whereby an affordable 
annual fee and a fee per visit is paid by each 

member provided that such fees are agreed by the 
Landlord in writing such agreement not to be 

unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

d) at all times comply with appropriate policies and 

procedures for the safeguarding of children young 
people and vulnerable adults in respect of the 

Authorised Use. 

 

10 DEVELOPMENT The construction of a facility for the children and young 
people of the City of Salford and surrounding areas providing 

universal activity based services, complemented by a range 
of targeted support services to help and educate them by 

promoting their full physical, intellectual and social 
potential on the Property together with all ancillary works 

and infrastructure as outlined in development plans and 
specifications to be approved by the Landlord and in 

accordance with planning permission and any subsequent 
Statutory consents obtained by the Tenant in relation to the 
Property. 

 
11 MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR Following completion of the Development, the Tenant is to 

repair and keep in repair the Property.  
 

12 SERVICES: The Tenant is to be responsible for the payment of all gas, 
electricity, water and any other services provided to the 

premises as well as for the payment of rates (to the extent 
that such liability is not covered by charitable relief). 

   
13 ALTERATIONS: The Tenant shall not carry out any substantial additions or 

material external alterations to the Property without the 
consent of the Landlord.  

   
14 ALIENATION: No alienation except by way of: 

 
a) a charge of the whole to a financial institution of 

repute and substance and/or to a sport, charitable or 
community development body providing financial 

assistance to the Tenant for the Development or for 
the Authorised Use with the prior consent of the 

Landlord (not to be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed); 

 

Page 16



  
 Page 3 

 

b) an assignment of the whole to a charitable company 
or Public Body providing services or facilities which 
directly support the primary purpose of and are 

within the Authorised Use and the Community Use 
with the prior consent of the Landlord (not to be 

unreasonably withheld or delayed); 
 

c) an underletting of the whole or any part to a 
charitable company or Public Body providing services 

or facilities which directly support the primary 
purpose of and are within the Authorised Use and the 

Community Use with the previous consent of the 
Landlord (not to be unreasonably withheld or 

delayed) provided that a permitted underlease shall 
contain covenants on the part of the underlessee as 

follows:- 

i. an absolute covenant not to assign or part 

with or share possession or occupation of 
part of any of the underlet premises; and 

ii. a qualified covenant not to assign the whole 
of the underlet Premises without the 

previous consent of the Landlord such 
consent not to be unreasonably withheld or 

delayed. 
 

15 INSURANCE: The Tenant is to insure the Property for the usual insured 
risks. The Tenant will ask the insurers to note the Landlord’s 

interest on the policy and will produce evidence of cover. 
 

16 BREAK CLAUSES: None 
 

17 FORFEITURE  The Lease can be terminated if the Tenant:  

 
a) fails to pay the Rent; or  

 
b) becomes insolvent; or 

 
c) materially breaches any condition of the Lease or 

materially breaches any of its obligations in the 
Lease and fails to remedy such breach within such 

reasonable time as the Landlord may reasonably 
specify; or  

 
d) if the Tenant fails to use the Premises for the 

Authorised Use or for Community Use for a 
continuous period in excess of twelve months. 

 
In any of these circumstances the Council will be able to 

forfeit the lease subject to a step-in right in favour of OnSide 
Youth Zones (company number: 06591785, charity number: 

1125839) which can only be exercised if the Council is 
reasonably satisfied that: 

 
a) OnSide has the resources to operate the Property for 

the Authorised Use and the Community Use; and 
 

b) OnSide has the financial ability whether from its own 

Page 17



  
 Page 4 

 

resources or from grants or donations to operate the 
Premises for the Authorised Use and the Community 
Use. 

   
   

18 COSTS: Each party will bear its own costs. 
  17 

   
 

Page 18



18.12.10_Development Agreement OnSide Youth Zones_Template_Clean 

DATED                                                                                          20[  ] 
 
 
 
   

[Insert name of relevant Council] 

 

and 

 

[Insert name of relevant Youth Zone Charity]  

  

and 

 

 ONSIDE YOUTH ZONES  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

(Incorporating Building Licence and Agreement for Lease) 
in respect of [Insert name of relevant Youth Zone and address] 

 
 
 

 
 
  

Page 19



 
 

1 

 

T H I S   A G R E E M E N T   is made the                                                20[  ]      

B E T W E E N:- 

(1)  [Insert name of relevant Council] of [insert address] ("the Council");  

(2)  [Insert name of relevant Youth Zone Charity] (Company Number [insert], Charity Number 

[insert]) whose registered office is situate at [insert as appropriate] ("the Developer"); and 

(3)   ONSIDE YOUTH ZONES (Company Number 6591785, Charity Number 1125893) whose 

registered office is situate at Atria, Spa Road, Bolton, BL1 4AG ("OnSide");  

 
WHEREBY IT IS AGREED as follows:- 

 
1. INTERPRETATION 

 
1.1 The definitions in this clause apply in this Agreement:- 

 
“Act” means the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended); 

 
“Adjoining Premises” means such part of the public highways known as [insert name(s) of 

street(s) as appropriate] adjoining the Property as are in the ownership or control of the Council 

as landowner; 

 
“Adoption Agreements” means any agreement for the adoption of any Infrastructure, any 

Section 38/278 Works and/or any Service Media and/or highways, cycleways or footpaths so that 

the same shall be maintainable at the public expense or by the relevant Utility Body or other 

competent authority; 

 
“Certificate of Practical Completion” means the certificate to be issued by the Employer’s Agent 

or other suitably qualified professional person certifying that Practical Completion has been 

achieved; 

 

“Building Contract” means the contract awarded by the Developer for the design and 

construction of the Development; 

 
“Building Contractor” means the person, firm or company to which the Developer awards the 

Page 20



 
 

2 

Building Contract; 

 
“CDM Regulations” means the Construction (Design & Management) Regulations 2007; 

 

“Challenge” means either:- 
 

(a) an application made for judicial review by a third party following the grant of the 

Planning Permission by the Local Planning Authority; or 

 
(b) an application made under Section 288 of the Act by a third party following the grant 

of the Planning Permission by the Secretary of State for the Department of the 

Communities and Local Government or an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of 

State to determine appeals made under Section 78 of the Act; 

 
“Challenge Period” means the following periods each calculated from and including the date of 

the Planning Permission:- 

 
(a) following the grant of the Planning Permission by the Local Planning Authority 

(including after the determination of an application under Section 73 of the Act) the 

period of 6 weeks [3 months]; or 

 
(b) following the grant of the Planning Permission by or on behalf of the Secretary of 

State for the Department of Communities and Local Government the period of 6 

weeks; 

 
“Commercial Conditions” means the Standard Commercial Property Conditions (Second Edition) 

as varied by the Fifth Schedule so far as they are consistent with its express terms;  

“Completion Date” means 10 Working Days from the receipt by the Council of written notice 

from the Developer that the Development has been Practically Completed Provided Always that 

if the Council shall dispute that the Development has been Practically Completed the Completion 

Date shall be 10 Working Days after such dispute has been finally disposed of; 

 
“Conditions” means the conditions referred to in clause 2.1; 

 
“the Consents” means all approvals required to be obtained under the provisions of this 

Agreement and all other consents, licences, permissions and approvals necessary to be obtained 

by the Developer to enable the Developer lawfully to carry out the Works; 

Page 21



 
 

3 

 
“Contract Rate” means interest at 3% over the base lending rate from time to time of Co-

operative Bank plc; 

 
“Developer’s Architect” means the person, firm or company for the time being appointed by the 

Developer to issue the Certificate of Practical Completion; 

 
“Development” means the construction of a facility for the children and young people of [insert 

name of town, city or borough] and surrounding areas providing universal activity based services, 

complemented by a range of targeted support services to help and educate them by promoting 

their full physical, intellectual and social potential on the Property together with all ancillary 

works and Infrastructure as outlined in the Development Plans and Specifications and in 

accordance with the Planning Permission and any subsequent permissions obtained by the 

Developer in relation to the Property;   

 
“Development Longstop Date” means the later of:- 
 

(a) the date 30 months from the date of the Planning Permission; and 

 
(b) the date 30 months from the Funding Date 

 
or such later date as may be agreed between the Parties or as may be provided for under clause 

5.19; 

 
“Development Plans and Specifications” means the plans and specifications detailed in the First 

Schedule or such other plans and specifications for the Development previously approved by the 

Council in its capacity as landlord and land owner (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld 

or delayed); 

 
“Drop Off Zone” means the area of the public highway [insert name of street] cross hatched 
yellow on Plan [insert suitable plan reference]; [Drafting note: this definition is relevant only 
where there is a drop off zone and it is located outside the development site] 
 
“Employer’s Agent” means the person, firm or company for the time being appointed by the 

Developer to issue the Certificate of Practical Completion 

 

“Environmental Laws” means all laws, directions, regulations, codes of practice, guidance notes, 

circulars (in the case of guidance notes and circulars being those with the force of the law) and 

the like concerning the protection of the environment, human health or working conditions 

Page 22



 
 

4 

including without limitation the conservation of natural resources, the production, storage, 

transportation, treatment, recycling or disposal of any waste or any noxious, offensive or 

dangerous substance or the liability of any person whether civil or criminal for any damage to or 

pollution of the environment or the rectification thereof or any related matters; 

 
"FOIA" means the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and any subordinate legislation made under 

it from time to time 

"Force Majeure" means any one or more of the following: 

(a) fire; 

(b) storm or other exceptionally adverse weather conditions; 

(c) war, hostilities, rebellion, insurrection, military or usurped power or civil war; 

(d) labour lockouts, strikes or other industrial disputes; 

(e) riot, terrorist action, commotion, disorder; 

(f) decree of government; 

(g) non-availability of labour, materials or equipment;  

(h) adverse ground conditions 

 

“Free from Challenge” means either the relevant Challenge Period in relation to the Planning 

Permission has expired without a Challenge being made or if a Challenge has been made during 

the Challenge Period that Challenge has been finally disposed of leaving in place the Planning 

Permission; 

 
“Funding” means the obtaining of capital funding or commitments to provide capital funding 

totalling [insert amount of total project cost in words] Pounds (£insert appropriate figures) by the 

Council, the Developer and OnSide to enable the construction of the Development; 

 
“Funding Date” means the date on which all the Funding is obtained or committed or such earlier 

date as may be agreed by the Parties; 

 
“Funding Longstop Date” means the date 12 months from the date of the Planning Permission 

or such later date as may be agreed by the Parties; 

 

Page 23



 
 

5 

"Insured Risks" means the risks of: 

(a) fire, subterranean fire, lightning, storm, tempest, flood and explosion; 

(b) bursting or overflowing of water tanks, apparatus or pipes or the escape of water from 

any of them; 

(c) aircraft or other aerial devices or articles dropped or falling from any of them; 

(d) riot, civil commotion and malicious damage; 

(e) impact, earthquake, heave, landslip, subsidence 

 
“Infrastructure” means the roads, footpaths, Service Media and landscaping to be constructed 

within the Property and any remediation measures required to enable the Development to 

proceed and be beneficially used and occupied; 

 

 
“Lease” means a lease of the Property to be granted by the Council to the Developer for a term 

of 125 years from the date of the Lease to be completed on the Completion Date and which shall 

be in the form set out in the Second Schedule with such consequential amendments as may be 

necessary; 

 

 “Licence Commencement Date” means the later of:- 

       (a) the date of the Planning Permission; and 

(b) the Funding Date;  

 
“Licence Fee” means £1 (One Pound); 

 
“the Licence Period” means the period from the Licence Commencement Date until the 

Development Longstop Date or such later date as may be agreed between the Parties or as may 

be provided for under clause 5.19; 

 
“Local Highway Authority” means the highway authority for the area in which the Property is 

situated; 

 
“Local Planning Authority” means the local planning authority for the area in which the Property 

is situated; 

Page 24



 
 

6 

 
“Minor Defects” means any minor defects, shrinkages or other minor faults or minor omissions 

in the Development due to materials or workmanship not being in accordance with the terms of 

the Building Contract 

 

“Onerous Condition” means any condition included in the Planning Permission or by means of a 

Planning Obligation which: 

 
(a) limits the life of the Planning Permission after initiation for the purposes of Section 

56 of the Act; or 

  
(b) makes the Development uneconomic to build or impractical to use for its intended 

purpose once built or excessively expensive to operate or to insure in the opinion of 

the Developer (acting reasonably); or 

 

(c) requires the payment of a financial contribution other than the Council’s reasonable 

legal fees for the preparation of a Planning Obligation 

 
“Operational Agreement” means an agreement to be made between the Council (1) the 

Developer (2) and OnSide (3) on the Completion Date and which shall be in the form set out in 

the Third Schedule with such consequential amendments as may be necessary; 

 

“Oversailing Agreement” means an agreement between the Local Highway Authority (1) the 

Developer (2) and (potentially) the Council (3) in relation to the construction and maintenance of 

part of the Development over the public highways [insert names of affected streets] as coloured 

red on Plan [insert suitable plan reference]; [Drafting note: definition only required if relevant to 

the circumstances] 

 
“Outstanding Funding” means the obtaining of capital funding or commitments to provide 

capital funding totalling [insert amount of current capital shortfall in words] Pounds (£insert 

appropriate figures) by the Developer and OnSide to enable the construction of the 

Development; 

 
“Parties” means the parties to this Agreement and "Party" shall have a corresponding meaning; 

 
“Plan” means the plan marked “[insert relevant plan reference]” attached to this Agreement; 

Page 25



 
 

7 

 
 “Planning Application” means the application to the Council for the Planning Permission under 
Application Number [insert appropriate reference] ; 
 

“Planning Obligation” means an agreement or unilateral undertaking under Section 106 of the 
Act; 
 

“Planning Permission” means (subject to the provisions of paragraph 6 of the Seventh  Schedule) 

detailed or full planning permission for the Development obtained by the Developer in relation 

to the Property which is Free from Challenge;  

 
“Planning Permission Longstop Date” means the date 9 months from the date of this Agreement 

or such later date as may be agreed by the Parties Provided Always that if the Planning Permission 

is subject to Challenge the Planning Permission Longstop Date shall be extended until 10 Working 

Days after such Challenge is finally disposed of; 

 
“Practical Completion” means completion of the Development to the extent that the 

Development is capable of substantial operation and in accordance with the Building Contract 

but disregarding any Minor Defects and "Practically Completed" shall have a corresponding 

meaning;         

 
“Professional Fees” means all or any of the following costs and expenses in respect of the 

Development that are reasonably and properly incurred:- 

 
(a) Architects fees; 

(b) Engineers fees; 

(c) Planning Consultants fees (including any fees for supporting technical studies); 

(d) Mechanical and Electrical consultants fees; 

(e) Landscape architects fees; 

(f) CDM Coordinator’s fees; 

(g) Fees payable to the Council for the Planning Application; 

(h) Fees payable in respect of any applications for any Consents 

(i) Fees payable in respect of any other professional or consultancy fees (including 

OnSide’s fees); 

 
Provided Always that Professional Fees shall not (except in the case of OnSide) include any 

internal costs and expenses of any of the Parties; 

Page 26



 
 

8 

 
"Prohibited Materials" means any products, substances or materials or any combination of them 

which at the time of specification are specified as deleterious materials in the Building Contract 

or which otherwise:- 

(a) do not conform with British or European Standards or Codes of Practice or  the 

recommendations of the Building Research Establishment; and 

(b) are generally known to the building profession to be deleterious to health and safety, 

the performance or durability of buildings or structures or damaging to the 

environment in the particular circumstances in which they are specified to be used or 

are used; 

“Property” means all that plot of land situate at [insert appropriate description] being part of the 

land comprised in the Registered Title and shown edged red on Plan A;  

 
 “Registered Title” means Title Numbers [insert as appropriate to include the title of the Council]; 

 

“Retained Land” means such part of the land comprised in the Registered Title as does not 

comprise the Property; 

 
“Section 38/278 Agreement” means an agreement under Section 38 and/or Section 278 of the 

Highways Act 1980 or other appropriate powers between the Local Highways Authority (1) and 

the Developer (2) and (potentially) the Council in relation to any element of Section 38/278 Works 

within or adjacent to the Development which will ultimately remain under the control of the Local 

Highways Authority; 

 
“Section 38/278 Works” means any works to be carried out by the Developer under the 

provisions of a Section 38/278 Agreement(s)  

 
“Senior Representatives” means any director or senior executive officer of the relevant Party;  

 
“Service Media” means all pipes, sewers, watercourses, wires, cables, drains, mains, ducts, 

conduits, gutters, watercourses, culverts and other service or conducting media required for the 

passage and transmission of the Services; 

 
“Services” means all electricity, water, telephone, soil, foul and surface water drainage and other 

Page 27



 
 

9 

services required for the beneficial use and occupation of any land and buildings forming part of 

the Development; 

 
“Title Matters” means the matters contained or referred to in the Property and Charges Registers 

of the Registered Title; 

 
“Utility Body” means the relevant statutory body or authority responsible for the relevant Service 

Media; 

 
“VAT” means value added tax chargeable under the Value Added Tax Act 1994 and any similar 

replacement tax and any similar addition tax; 

 
“VAT Act” means the Value Added Tax Act 1994; 

 
“VAT Option to Tax” means a valid option to tax the Property made or treated as having been 

made under Paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 10 of the VAT Act; 

 
“Works” means the works necessary for carrying out and completing the Development including 

the Section 38/278 Works;   

 

“Working Day” means any day which is not a Saturday or Sunday or Christmas Day, Boxing Day, 

Good Friday or a statutory bank holiday in England or Wales. 

 

“Year Zero Costs” means the pre-opening costs of the Development reasonably incurred by the 

Developer 

 
1.2  The rules of interpretation in this clause apply in this Agreement. 

1.3 Clause and Schedule headings do not affect the interpretation of this Agreement. 

1.4 Except where a contrary intention appears, a reference to a clause or a Schedule is a 

reference to a clause of, or Schedule to this Agreement. 

1.5 Unless otherwise specified, a reference to a law is a reference to it as it is in force for the 

time being taking account of any amendment, extension, application or re-enactment 

and includes any subordinate legislation for the time being in force made under it. 

1.6 A "person" includes a corporate or unincorporated body. 

1.7 "Writing" or "written" does not include faxes or e-mail. 

Page 28



 
 

10 

1.8 Any obligation in this Agreement on a person not to do something includes an obligation 

not to agree or allow that thing to be done. 

1.9 "Council" includes the Council’s successors in title and any other person who is or 

becomes entitled to the reversion (whether immediate or not) expectant on the term to 

be created by the Lease. 

CONDITIONS  

2.1 This Agreement is conditional upon 

 

 2.1.1    the Planning Permission being granted by the Planning Permission Longstop Date. The 

provisions of the Seventh Schedule shall apply to the application for the Planning 

Permission; and  

 

2.1.2    the Funding being obtained or committed by the Funding Longstop Date. The provisions 

of clause 3 shall apply to the securing of the Funding. 

 
2.2 The grant of the Lease is conditional upon the Development being Practically Completed 

by the Development Longstop Date.  

 
2.3 The completion of the Operational Agreement is conditional upon the grant of the Lease. 

 
2.4     If the Conditions have not been satisfied or waived under the terms of this Agreement 

on or before the Planning Permission Longstop Date, the Funding Longstop Date or the 

Licence Commencement Date (as applicable), the Council or the Developer may at any 

time thereafter unless the Conditions have at that time been satisfied or (where it is 

possible to do so) waived, end this Agreement by serving three months written notice on 

the other Parties Provided Always that no Party which is in material breach of its 

obligations under this Agreement may serve such notice. 

2.5 If any of such Parties serves a valid notice on the other Parties under clause 2.4 then this 

Agreement shall terminate on the expiration of such notice and Commercial Condition 

9.2 will apply and the Developer will remove any entries lodged at the Land Registry to 

protect this Agreement but neither party will be under any further or additional liability 

to the other (save as provided in clause 2.6). 

2.6 Termination of this Agreement pursuant to clause 2.4 shall be without prejudice to any 

Page 29



 
 

11 

rights that any Party may have against another Party for any antecedent breach of the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
2.7 Clause 2.1 may be waived by the Council and the Developer acting jointly. 

 
FUNDING 

3.1 The Parties shall use their reasonable endeavours to secure the Funding as soon as 

practicable but in any event by the Funding Longstop Date. 

 
3.2 Subject to the Planning Permission being granted and the balance of the Funding being 

secured the Council hereby agrees to provide the sum of [insert amount of capital 

contribution in words] Pounds (£insert appropriate figures) towards the Funding. 

 

3.3 The Council agrees to provide up to the sum of [insert amount of agreed ‘at risk’ capital 

contribution in words] Pounds (£insert appropriate figures) towards the Professional Fees 

as and when necessary as an advance payment of its contribution towards the Funding 

pursuant to clause 3.2. The Council acknowledges that if this Agreement shall not become 

unconditional for any reason then such contribution towards the Professional Fees shall 

not be recoverable by it. 

 

3.4 The Council hereby agrees with the Developer to provide its share of the Funding in 

accordance with clauses 3.2 and 3.3 on a stage payment basis as the Development 

progresses and as reasonably requested by the Developer. An indicative construction 

cash flow forecast for such Funding is contained in the Sixth Schedule. Such cash flow 

forecast shall be reviewed and updated as necessary during the Development. Any 

request for payment of such Funding by the Developer shall be submitted to the Council’s 

Director of Finance or other appropriate officer and shall be supported by appropriate 

statements and invoices within five (5) working days of the Council requesting such 

statements and invoices. 

 
3.5 Subject to the Planning Permission being granted the Council agrees to provide, in 

addition to its contribution towards the Funding pursuant to clause 3.2 and 3.3, a further 

sum of up to [insert amount of this total contribution in words] Pounds (£insert 

appropriate figures) towards the Year Zero Costs. Any request for payment of such costs 

by the Developer shall be submitted to the Council’s Director of Finance or other 

Page 30



 
 

12 

appropriate officer and shall be supported by appropriate statements and invoices within 

five (5) working days of the Council requesting such statements and invoices. 

 
3.6 OnSide shall have the primary responsibility for coordinating the securing of the 

Outstanding Funding and shall keep the other Parties regularly informed as to the 

progress of securing the Outstanding Funding. 

 
3.7 In the event that the Funding raised exceeds [insert value of capital budget in words] 

Pounds (£insert appropriate figures) the surplus (“Excess”) shall be utilised in the 

following manner:- 

 
3.7.1 If the total cost of the Works plus Professional Fees exceeds [insert amount of 

total project budget in words] Pounds (£insert appropriate figures) then the 

Excess may (without the consent of the Council) be applied by the Developer to 

fund the cost of the Works plus Professional Fees. 

 
3.7.2 The Developer may (with the prior written consent of the Council) apply any 

Excess (which has not been applied or is not due to be applied pursuant to clause 

3.7.1):  

 

3.7.2.1 in providing an enhanced specification for the Works and/or the 

provision of additional or higher specification equipment in the fit out of 

the Development; and/or 

 
3.7.2.2 if the original providers of the Excess agree, towards the annual operating costs 

of the Development. 

 
3.8 In the event that the total cost of the Works (plus Professional Fees) shall be less than 

the amount of the Funding the saving shall be allocated/repaid in the following 

proportions:- 

 
3.8.1 [insert relevant %] to the Council; and 

 
3.8.2 [insert relevant %] to the providers of the Outstanding Funding in the proportions 

in which they contributed the Outstanding Funding. 

 

3.9 If a Party does not pay any of the sums due under this Agreement within seven days of 

Page 31



 
 

13 

the due date for payment the Party in default will pay interest on those sums, both after 

as well as before judgment, at 4% per annum above the Contract Rate for the period from 

and including the due date for payment to and including the date of actual payment.  

 
4. LICENCE FOR THE WORKS 

4.1 Subject to the Planning Permission being granted and Funding being secured the Council 

shall grant to the Developer together with its servants, agents and contractors the licence 

subject to the terms of this Agreement and to the payment of the Licence Fee to enter 

the Property and the Retained Land as may be necessary as licensee from the Licence 

Commencement Date for the Licence Period for the purpose only of carrying out the 

Works and ancillary activities necessary to undertake the Works and for no other purpose 

whatsoever.    

 
4.2 The Developer shall with effect from the Licence Commencement Date pay and 

indemnify the Council against all rates, taxes, assessments, duties, charges, impositions 

and outgoings from time to time charged assessed or imposed upon the Property or the 

Works or upon the owner or occupier of them. 

 
4.3 The Developer shall following the grant of the Planning Permission at its own cost and 

expense apply for and diligently take all reasonably necessary steps to endeavour to 

secure all Consents that may be necessary to construct the Works and procure (so far as 

is within the Developer's control) that none of the Consents are revoked and that all 

Consents continue in full force and effect. 

 
4.4       The licence in clause 4.1 permits those exercising the rights to bring upon the Property 

and the Retained Land vehicles, plant, equipment and materials required for undertaking 

the Works. 

 
4.5       Without prejudice to the provisions of clauses 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14 and 28 the licence(s) 

granted by clause 4.1 will not confer on the Developer or any other person any legal or 

equitable right, title, interest or estate in the Property. 

4.6      The licence(s) granted by clause 4.1 will end on the earlier of the following dates: 

4.6.1 the date on which this Agreement is terminated or;  

4.6.2 the Completion Date. 

Page 32



 
 

14 

4.7 When the licence granted by clause 4.1 ends then, unless completion of the Lease has 

taken place, the Developer is to procure that the Property is vacated by all persons and 

that all vehicles, plant, equipment and materials belonging to those persons are removed 

from the Property and the Retained Land and if the Developer has not done so within 28 

days of the licence(s) ending:  

4.7.1 the Council may dispose of them as agent(s) for the Developer; 

4.7.2 the Developer shall indemnify the Council against any liability to any third party 

whose property has been sold in the mistaken but bona fide belief (which shall 

be presumed unless the opposite is proved) that the items in question belonged 

to the Developer; 

4.7.3 the Council shall use any proceeds of sale to defray any reasonable costs properly 

incurred in connection with the removal, storage and sale of such items and to 

discharge any other sums which are still due to the Council under the terms of 

this Agreement; 

4.7.4 the Council shall account to the Developer for any subsequent balance, unless 

more than 3 months have elapsed since the date of any sale and the Council has 

been unable to locate the Developer, in which case the Council may keep any 

balance proceeds of sale in such proportions as they shall decide. 

5. THE DEVELOPMENT AND THE WORKS 
 
5.1 Subject to the Planning Permission being granted by the Planning Permission Longstop 

Date and the Funding being secured by the Funding Longstop Date the Developer shall 

commence the Works on the Property not later than four months after the Licence 

Commencement Date. 

 
5.2 The Developer shall use its reasonable endeavours to achieve Practical Completion by the 

Development Longstop Date. 

 
5.3 The Developer shall carry out and complete or procure the completion of the 

Development in accordance with the Development Plans and Specifications and the 

Planning Permission subject to all Consents from time to time necessary being obtained 

and continuing in force and shall at its own cost and expense diligently carry out the 

Page 33



 
 

15 

construction of the Works in a sound substantial and workmanlike manner with good 

quality materials of their several kinds (excluding Prohibited Materials) and in full 

conformity with detailed layout plans showing sections and elevations and specifications 

as shown in the Planning Permission and provided also that there shall be no material 

amendment or variation to such Development Plans and Specifications without the 

consent in writing (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) of the 

Council in its capacity as landlord and land owner. 

 
5.4 If the Developer shall procure the construction of a compound within the boundaries of 

the Property for the storage of materials and erection of site huts and offices (subject to 

the Developer having first obtained all necessary Consents) then the erection of site huts 

and the storage of materials shall be carried out within this compound only which shall 

be screened by a fence not less than 1.8 metres high. 

 

5.5 The Developer shall be responsible for all costs incurred in connecting to the main 

services as directed by the respective statutory undertakers during the carrying out of 

the Works. 

 
5.6 The Developer shall be responsible for all costs it incurs in connection with the Works and 

without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing the Developer shall be responsible 

for all costs incurred if the Developer decides to divert any existing services which may 

be affected by the Development and shall at its own expense be responsible for any 

removal or diversion that the Developer wishes to carry out of any watercourses, sewers, 

drains, pipes, wires, cables, apparatus and any other service media and for any grouting 

up or removal that the Developer wishes to carry out on any redundant sewers in the 

Property and the Developer shall also be responsible for the expenses of any of the 

Statutory Undertakers, Environment Agency or telecommunications code system 

operators which may arise if they have been requested by the Developer to undertake 

such removal, diversion or grouting up on the behalf of the Developer and the Developer 

shall indemnify the Council against all and any costs arising therefrom. 

 
5.7 The Developer undertakes with the Council that during the Works it will take all 

reasonable steps to ensure that mud and debris are not deposited on the highways or 

footpaths adjoining the Property and will indemnify the Council against all claims and 

demands arising out of any damage caused thereto by the Developer. 

Page 34



 
 

16 

 
5.8 During the course of the Works the Developer shall:-  

 
5.8.1 use reasonable endeavours to ensure the Property is safe and secure to the 

general public; and 

 
5.8.2 comply with the insurance requirements under the provisions of clause 15; and 

 
5.8.3 comply with the environmental requirements under the provisions of clause 7.2; 

and 

 
5.8.4 procure reasonably suitable on-site supervision; and 

 
5.8.5 use reasonable endeavours, subject to the costs of the Development not being 

increased and subject to suitably skilled labour being available, to require the 

Building Contractor to use a reasonable proportion of labour from the [insert 

name of town, city or borough] area for the construction of the Development. 

 
5.9 The Developer shall enter into or procure any Adoption Agreements and/or Section 

38/278 Agreements if it is necessary to do so and where the Council also needs to consent 

as landowner then it shall not unreasonably withhold or delay obtaining all necessary 

approvals to enable its consent to be given. 

 
5.10 On completion of the Works the Developer shall at its own expense within a reasonable 

time and to the reasonable satisfaction of the Local Highway Authority reinstate or 

procure the reinstatement of all roads, street furniture, footpaths, verges and kerb 

edgings adjoining or giving access to the Property which are damaged as a result of the 

actions of the Developer its servants, agents and contractors.  

 

5.11 The Developer and its contractors shall execute the Works having full regard to the 

provisions of the CDM Regulations and the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and any 

codes of practice statutory notifications or amendments pursuant thereto. 

 
5.12 The Developer shall not use or occupy the Property or permit or suffer the Property to 

be used or occupied for any purpose other than the carrying out of the Works prior to 

the Completion Date. 

 

Page 35



 
 

17 

5.13 The Developer shall not deposit or permit or suffer to be deposited or used in or on the 

Property any Prohibited Materials  

 
5.14 The Developer shall not permit any explosives or noxious liquids and gases to be stored 

on the Property during the carrying out of the Works with the exception of diesel or petrol 

fuels, paraffin, compressed propane or butane or compressed oxygen and acetylene. 

 
5.15 The Developer shall not sell or dispose of any earth, clay, sand, gravel or other material 

from the Property or permit or suffer the same to be removed except so far as shall be 

necessary for carrying out of the Works and shall: 

 
5.15.1   not place any earth, clay, sand, gravel or other material from the Property onto 

any Adjoining Premises; 

 
5.15.2   not knowingly permit the escape from the Property of any solid, liquid or gaseous 

matter of a noxious or offensive nature; 

 
5.15.3  notify the Council immediately if any articles of value or of historic or prehistoric 

interest are discovered in the course of carrying out the Works and so that 

(subject to the rights of the Crown) the Council shall have the sole property in 

any such articles and they shall be dealt with as the Council shall reasonably direct 

provided that the Council shall indemnify the Developer against any claim for 

additional cost and expense relating to any disruption or extension of time 

incurred by the Developer as a result of following the Council’s directions under 

any building contract relating to the Works unless such directions are as a result 

of compliance with a legal requirement from an appropriate body or a 

requirement under  any Consent or the Planning Permission in which case the 

Developer will be responsible for the cost of archaeological implications arising 

from the Works. 

 
5.16 The Developer shall promptly supply the Council on written request with copies of any 

notices received by the Developer (whether from any local or other competent authority 

or from any adjoining owner) relating in any way to the Property or the Works. 

 
5.17 Any remediation of the Property required by the Planning Permission or the Consents 

shall be carried out with all reasonable diligence by the Developer and at the Developer’s 

Page 36



 
 

18 

expense PROVIDED that the Developer will be reasonably diligent if it follows the 

minimum Environment Agency requirements for the purposes of the Development as to 

the extent of remediation works required and the timeframe in which that remediation 

is to be achieved. 

 
5.18     The Licence Period and the Development Longstop Date shall be extended upon the 

written application of the Developer by such period or periods as the Council may acting 

reasonably permit such application or applications to be made inter alia in the event of 

the Developer suffering delay in the construction of the Works by reason of Force 

Majeure. Any disputes regarding applications for extensions of time under the provisions 

of this clause shall be dealt with under the provisions of clause 17. 

 
5.19 No extension of time under clause 5.18 shall be by more than an additional aggregate 

period of 2 years beyond the Development Longstop Date. 

 
5.20 The Developer will procure that it obtains and delivers to the Council and OnSide 

collateral warranties in favour of the Council and OnSide from the Building Contractor 

and from the architect, structural engineer and the mechanical and electrical engineer 

which it appoints in respect of the Development such collateral warranties to be in the 

form set out in the Fourth Schedule with such consequential amendments as may be 

necessary. 

5.21 The Developer will procure that when issuing the Certificate of Practical Completion the 

Developer’s Architect also issues a list of Minor Defects and the Developer shall procure 

that the Building Contractor remedies such Minor Defects in accordance with the 

provisions of the Building Contract. 

6.    REVIEW OF THE WORKS 

The Council's surveyor shall have the right to enter the Property and the Works on 

reasonable notice to view the state and progress of the same and for the purpose of 

ascertaining that the agreements, conditions and stipulations contained in this 

Agreement relating to the construction of the Works have been duly observed and 

performed and for any other reasonable purpose but not so as to unnecessarily or 

unreasonably interfere with or impede the carrying out of the Works and in compliance 

with the Developer’s safety requirements. 

Page 37



 
 

19 

 
7. CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY AND ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 
 
7.1 No representation or warranty is given by the Council that the Property is fit for the 

Works. 

 
7.2.1 In this clause "Competent Authority" means any government body, the Environment 

Agency, court, tribunal or other body deriving power under Environmental Laws. 

7.2.2  The Developer agrees that the apportionment by a Competent Authority of any liabilities 

that may arise under Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (as amended) 

("Part IIA") in respect of pollution or contamination present in on or under  the Property 

shall be undertaken on the basis that the Developer shall have full responsibility for any 

and all such liabilities. 

7.2.3 It is hereby acknowledged and intended by the Developer that sub-clause 7.2.2 is an 

agreement on liabilities for the purposes of Part IIA. 

7.2.4 The Developer agrees that in the event of a notification being served on it which indicates 

that the Property is or is likely to be determined ‘contaminated land’ under Part IIA to 

notify the Council as soon as is reasonably practicable. 

7.2.5 The Developer undertakes to furnish the Competent Authority with a copy of this 

Agreement as soon as is reasonably practicable after receiving a note from the 

Competent Authority or a notification under sub-clause 7.2.4 and agrees to the 

application of sub-clause 7.2.2 and to confirm such individual agreement in writing to the 

Competent Authority following receipt of such notice or notification. 

7.2.6 The Developer hereby undertakes to use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that the 

Competent Authority applies the agreement on liabilities set out in sub-clause 7.2.2 

7.2.7 For the avoidance of doubt the Council and the Developer shall retain the right to appeal 

against a decision of a Competent Authority in accordance with Part IIA’s appeal 

procedure. 

7.2.8  The Developer hereby undertakes to indemnify the Council and keep the Council 

indemnified in respect of all and any fines, penalties, charges, actions, losses, costs, 

Page 38



 
 

20 

claims, expenses, demands, duties, obligations, damages and other liabilities that the 

Council may suffer: 

7.2.8.1 as a result of any failure of the Developer to adhere to the provisions of sub-

clause 7.2.2; or 

7.2.8.2 arising from any pollution or contamination present in or under or (where 

due to the actions of the Developer) originating from the Property. 

8. GRANT OF THE LEASE AND COMPLETION OF THE OPERATIONAL AGREEMENT 
 

8.1 Subject to Practical Completion of the Development being achieved by the Development 

Longstop Date the Council will grant and the Developer will accept the Lease. 

 
8.2 Subject to completion of the grant of the Lease the Developer, the Council and OnSide 

will enter into the Operational Agreement. 

 
9. COMPLETION 
 

 Completion of the grant of the Lease and the Operational Agreement shall take place on 

the Completion Date. 

 
10. TITLE GUARANTEE 
 

 The Council shall grant the Lease to the Property with full title guarantee. 

 
11. DEDUCING TITLE 
 
11.1 The Council’s title to the Property is registered at the Land Registry under Title Number(s) 

[insert as appropriate] and title shall consist of official copies of the registers of those 

Titles and official copies of all documents noted on the registers of those titles. 

 

12. COUNCIL OBLIGATIONS 
 
12.1 The Council shall enter into any necessary Adoption Agreement, Oversailing Agreement 

and/or Section 38/278 Agreements in respect of such part of the Works as may be carried 

out on land owned by the Council or which form part of the public highway. 

 
12.2 The Council will arrange and pay for the following in connection with the Drop Off Zone:- 

Page 39



 
 

21 

[insert any relevant provisions depending on the location and nature of the Drop Off Zone 

and negotiated terms]; 

 
12.3 In its capacity as landowner the Council shall enter into the Oversailing Agreement and 

render all necessary help and assistance to the Developer to enable it to construct the 

Drop Off Zone. 

 
13. VACANT POSSESSION 
 
 The Council will give the Developer vacant possession of the Property on the Licence 

Commencement Date.    

 
14. MATTERS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY 
 
14.1 The Council will grant the Lease to the Developer free from encumbrances other than:  

14.1.1 the Title Matters; 

14.1.2 local land charges registered before the date of this Agreement and all matters 

capable of registration as local land charges whether or not actually so registered; 

 
14.1.3 notices served and orders demands proposals or requirements made by any local 

public or other competent authority before the date of this Agreement; 

 
14.1.4 actual or proposed charges, notices, orders, restrictions, agreements, conditions, 

contraventions or other matters arising under the enactments relating to town 

and country planning; 

 
14.1.5 overriding interests, easements, rights, exceptions or other similar matters 

whether or not apparent on inspection or disclosed in any of the documents 

referred to in this Agreement. 

 
14.2 During the currency of this Agreement the Council shall not grant or create any 

easements, rights, privileges or tenancies affecting the Property without the consent of 

the Developer. 

 
15. INSURANCE 
 
15.1  It is agreed that the risk of damage to or loss or destruction of the Property, including all 

buildings, fixtures, fittings, plant and equipment, passes to the Developer on the Licence 

Page 40



 
 

22 

Commencement Date and the Developer is to insure the Property and the Works or is to 

ensure that the Building Contractor insures the Property and the Works: 

15.1.1 in its full reinstatement cost; 

15.1.2 against the Insured Risks (where appropriate to do so having regard to the 

Works); 

15.1.3 with reputable insurance offices in or having a business office in the United 

Kingdom or through underwriters at Lloyd’s; and 

15.1.4 on reasonable commercial terms and subject only to reasonable excesses, 

exclusions and conditions of such cover. 

15.2  The Developer is to use all reasonable and commercially sensible endeavours to procure 

that any exclusion in respect of terrorist activity is removed from the insurance 

maintained under clause 15.1. 

15.3  The Developer is to use all reasonable and commercially sensible endeavours to procure 

that the insurers of the Property and the Works under clause 15.1 undertakes with the 

Council not to cancel the insurance without first giving to the Council 15 Working Days’ 

prior written notice of their intention to do so. 

15.4   The Developer is to provide the Council with: 

15.4.1 a copy of the insurance policy maintained under clause 15.1 and evidence for 

the payment of the premium for the insurance; 

15.4.2 evidence of its renewal when reasonably requested by the Council; and 

15.4.3  any endorsements or other amendments to the relevant policies of insurance 

or of any notification or other correspondence relating to or affecting the 

Property or the Works sent to or received from the insurers. 

15.5 If the Property or the Works are damaged or destroyed by any of the Insured Risks: 

15.5.1 the Developer is to use reasonable and commercially sensible endeavours 

promptly to obtain the maximum payment of insurance moneys; 

Page 41



 
 

23 

15.5.2 all insurance monies received by the Developer shall be used by the Developer 

to rebuild, repair or otherwise reinstate the Property and the Works in a good 

and substantial manner in accordance with the terms of this Agreement to the 

reasonable satisfaction of the Council; 

 15.6 During the carrying out of the Development, the Developer (or the Building Contractor) 

is to maintain public liability insurance against liability to the public and to third parties 

in such sum as may be prudent but being for not less than £5,000,000 in respect of any 

one claim.  

15.7 If the Developer does not insure or procure all or any of the insurances required by this 

clause 15 or fails to produce reasonable evidence that such insurances are in force, the 

Council may itself effect such insurance cover as it may consider prudent and the proper 

cost of so doing together with any proper management and administrative costs for so 

doing will be payable by the Developer to the party incurring them on written demand. 

15.8 The Developer shall procure that the interest of the Council is noted on the insurance 

maintained under clause 15.1. 

16. VAT  
 
16.1 Subject to the provisions of clause 16.4 all sums payable under this Agreement by one 

party to another shall be deemed to be exclusive of VAT and the person paying any such 

sums shall also at the same time pay any VAT payable in respect thereof upon receipt of 

a valid VAT invoice addressed to the paying party. 

 
16.2 Where any party hereto is obliged to pay or reimburse any third party costs or expenses 

incurred by another party the party so paying or reimbursing shall in addition pay or 

reimburse any VAT payable in respect thereof save to the extent that the other party is 

entitled to repayment or credit in respect of such VAT. 

 
16.3 The Council warrants to the Developer that it has not prior to the date of this Agreement 

waived the exemption from VAT in respect of the Property and will not do so prior to the 

Completion Date. 

 
16.4 For the avoidance of doubt the provision of Funding by the Council pursuant to the 

provisions of clause 3 shall not be VATable. 

Page 42



 
 

24 

 
17. DETERMINATION OF DISPUTES 
 
17.1 Where provision is made for any matter or value to be ascertained or any dispute to be 

determined the same shall be determined in accordance with this clause 17. 

 
17.2 In this Agreement “Dispute” (except in relation to any legal dispute) shall mean and 

include any difference or dispute between the Parties or any of them arising out of or in 

connection with this Agreement and shall include any question as to the validity or 

interpretation of this Agreement and any Dispute arising before or after termination of 

this Agreement. 

  
17.3 Negotiations 
 
17.3.1 Any Dispute which may arise shall first be referred to relevant Senior Representatives for 

resolution through negotiations.  Any Party may at any time give five Working Days' 

notice in writing to the other relevant Party or Parties requiring that a Dispute be referred 

to Senior Representatives of the Parties.  Any such notice shall contain brief particulars 

of the Dispute which is to be so referred. The Senior Representatives shall meet within 

five Working Days of the expiry of the notice, or within such shorter or longer period as 

may be agreed between the relevant Parties, and shall at their meeting negotiate in good 

faith in an attempt to resolve the Dispute.  The relevant Parties shall bear their own costs 

of referring a Dispute to Senior Representatives for resolution through negotiation. 

 
17.3.2 The terms of resolution of any Dispute referred to and resolved by the relevant Senior 

Representatives shall be recorded in writing and shall be signed by the relevant Senior 

Representatives between whom such Dispute was resolved. 

 
17.3.3 If a Dispute is not resolved by Senior Representatives or if a Dispute has not been resolved 

within 10 Working Days after service of notice requiring that a Dispute be referred to 

Senior Representatives of the Parties for resolution any Party shall be entitled to refer 

any Dispute to Expert Determination as set out below. 

 
17.4 Expert Determination 
 
17.4.1 No Dispute shall be referred to an Expert for determination before the expiry of 10 

Working Days from the date of service of a notice requiring a Dispute to be referred to 

the relevant Senior Representatives of the parties for resolution. 

Page 43



 
 

25 

 
17.4.2 A Party wishing to have a Dispute referred to an Expert for determination shall give notice 

in writing to that effect to the other relevant Party or Parties.  The notice shall contain 

sufficient particulars of the Dispute to be referred to the Expert to allow the other Party 

or Parties to understand the nature of the Dispute and the profession or discipline of the 

Expert who is to be appointed. 

 
17.4.3 The Parties shall agree the identity of the Expert to be appointed. In default of agreement 

within 10 Working Days of the date of service of a notice referring a Dispute to an Expert 

for determination the Expert shall be appointed on the application of any Party by the 

Chairman or President as the case may be for the time being of the Appointing Body 

named in clause 17.4.4 below.  

 
17.4.4 The "Appointing Body" shall be: 
 

(a) For financial disputes: The Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountancy in England 

and Wales; 

 
(b)  For technical disputes nominated by the President or Vice President or other duly 

authorised officer of either The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors; 

 
(c) For land valuation and use disputes: nominated by the President or Vice President or 

other duly authorised officer of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. 

 
17.4.5 The Expert shall act as an expert and not as an arbitrator, and the provisions of the 

Arbitration Act 1996 and the law relating to arbitration shall not apply to the Expert or 

his determination or the procedure by which he reaches his determination. 

 
17.4.6 The Expert shall determine the Dispute referred to him acting impartially and in good 

faith.  The Expert shall establish the procedural rules to be applied to the determination 

which must accord with the following:- 

 
(a) Each Party will be entitled to make submissions to the Expert and to supply the Expert 

with data and information which it considers to be relevant. 

 
(b) The Expert may request any Party to provide him with such other written or other 

statements, documents or information as he may require in order to determine the 

Page 44



 
 

26 

Dispute referred to him and the Parties shall comply promptly with any such request. 

 
(c) Communications from a Party to the Expert or from the Expert to a Party shall be copied 

to all other Parties to the Dispute at the same time and by the same method. 

 
(d) The Expert will be entitled to make such site visits or inspections as he considers are 

necessary or appropriate. 

 
(e) The Expert shall not take into consideration any document or statement which has not 

been made available to the other relevant Parties to comment upon; and 

 
(f) A failure by a Party to respond to any request or direction by the Expert shall not 

invalidate the Expert's determination. 

 
17.4.7 Unless a shorter period is agreed between the Parties at the time of the Expert's 

appointment the Expert must give his determination in writing with reasons within 30 

Working Days of his appointment. The Expert's statement of reasons for his 

determination shall identify the documentation, investigations and other evidence 

considered by the Expert in arriving at his determination. 

 
17.4.8 The Expert's time for reaching his determination may be extended by a period of 10 

Working Days with the consent of the referring Party or by such longer period as may be 

agreed by the relevant Parties. 

 
17.4.9 The fees and expenses of the Expert shall be borne by the relevant Parties to the dispute 

in equal shares unless the Expert otherwise determines in his decision.  The Expert shall 

have jurisdiction to direct the payment by the unsuccessful Party to the successful Party 

in any reference of a Dispute to an Expert for destination of the successful Party's legal 

costs of such reference.  The amount of such costs shall be agreed between the relevant 

Parties if possible and in default of agreement shall be assessed by the Court on the 

standard basis. 

 
17.5 Save where this Agreement expressly provides otherwise all disputes as to any aspect of 

this Agreement between the Parties shall be determined in the prescribed manner for 

determination pursuant to this clause 17 shall be binding on the Parties (save in the event 

of manifest error). 

 

Page 45



 
 

27 

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement and the documents annexed to it constitute the entire agreement and 

understanding of the Parties and supersede any previous agreement between them 

relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

 
19. RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES 
 

A person who is not a party to this Agreement may not enforce any of its terms under 

the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999. 

 

20. TERMINATION 

20.1 It is hereby agreed and declared that notwithstanding and without prejudice to any other 

remedies and powers herein contained or otherwise available to the Council, if at any 

time during the Licence Period:-  

 
20.1.1 the Developer shall fail to remedy a material breach of any of its obligations 

under clause 5 within 28 days from the Council giving it written notice of such 

breach; or 

 
20.1.2  the Developer enters into liquidation (other than for the purposes of 

amalgamation or reconstruction of a solvent company) or has a receiver 

appointed or has an administrative receiver appointed or has an administration 

order made in respect of it  

 
then and in any such case it shall be lawful for the Council at any time thereafter on giving 

10 Working Days’ notice to determine this Agreement and to enter upon the Property or 

any part thereof in the name of the whole and take possession of the Property and all 

buildings, erections and fixtures and chattels building material and plant (other than 

materials and plant belonging to the Developer or any of its suppliers or contractors) 

whatsoever thereon with powers to hold and dispose thereof as absolute owners as if 

this Agreement had not been entered into and without making to the Developer any 

compensation and this Agreement shall thereupon determine but without prejudice to 

any right of action or other remedy of any Party for the recovery of any monies due to it 

from another Party in respect of any breach, non-observance or non-performance by 

such other Party of any agreements, conditions and stipulations herein contained.  

Page 46



 
 

28 

 
20.2 It is hereby agreed and declared that if any of the circumstances provided for under 

clause 20.1.2 shall arise due to the failure of the Council to comply with its obligations 

under clauses 3.2, 3.3 and/or 3.4 then the Council may not exercise its termination rights 

under clause 20.1. 

 
21. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION  
 
21.1 This Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its 

subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be 

governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England and Wales. 

 
21.2 The Parties irrevocably agree that the courts of England and Wales shall have exclusive 

jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim that arises out of or in connection with this 

Agreement or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or 

claims). 

 
21.3 Subject to the provisions of clause 17 each Party irrevocably consents to any process in 

any proceedings arising out of or in connection with this Agreement under clause 21.2 

being served on it in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement relating to service 

of notices. Nothing contained in this Agreement will affect the right to serve process in 

any other manner permitted by law. 

 
22. CONTINUATION OF THIS AGREEMENT 
 

Notwithstanding completion of the grant of the Lease and the Operational Agreement 

such of the provisions of this Agreement as shall not be included in the Lease and the 

Operational Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be enforceable by 

and between the Parties. 

 
23. REPRESENTATIONS ETC. 
 
23.1 No agent or other person acting for the Council (other than any of its members or officers 

sitting on the board of the Developer) has at any time prior to the making of this 

Agreement been authorised to make to the Developer its agent, adviser or other person 

any representation whatsoever (whether written oral or implied) in relation to this 

Agreement or the Property or to any matter contained or referred to in this Agreement. 

 

Page 47



 
 

29 

23.2 No immaterial error omission or misstatement in this Agreement or in any of the plans 

referred to in this Agreement or in any statement made by any person prior to the making 

of this Agreement shall in any way affect the obligations of the Parties or entitle any Party 

to damages or compensation.  

 
24.     FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000 

24.1 The Developer and OnSide understand and acknowledge that the Council is subject to 

the requirements of the FOIA and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 ("the 

EIR") and agree to assist and co-operate with the Council to enable the Council to comply 

with its obligations under the FOIA and the EIR insofar as they relate to all knowledge and 

information relating to the trade, business, activities, operations, organisations, finances, 

processes, drawings, specifications and methods (“Information”). 

 
24.2 The Developer shall provide the Council with a copy of all Information required to comply 

with any request for Information (to the extent that the Council does not already have 

such Information) and such Information shall be provided in:- 

 
24.2.1   such form as the Council may reasonably specify; and 

24.2.2  sufficient time to ensure the Council should reasonably be in a position to comply 

with its obligations under the FOIA and EIR in respect of the disclosure in 

connection with such request for Information. 

24.3  The Council shall be responsible for determining whether any Information is exempt from 

disclosure under the FOIA or EIR and for determining in their absolute discretion the 

Information to be disclosed in response to a request for Information provided always that 

the Council shall:- 

24.3.1 promptly upon receipt of each request for Information, give notice to the relevant 

party or parties of such request for Information and in such notice shall:- 

24.3.2  confirm (having given reasonable and proper consideration to the exemptions 

under FOIA) whether or not any Information is exempt from disclosure under 

FOIA pursuant to such request for information; and 

24.3.3  (to the extent applicable) provide the relevant party or parties with sufficient 

information to allow it or them to collate and provide any Information which it 

Page 48



 
 

30 

or they hold and which is required to be disclosed in respect of such request for 

Information. 

25. CONFIDENTIALITY CLAUSE 

25.1 Except to the extent set out in this clause or where disclosure is expressly permitted 

elsewhere in this Agreement, each Party shall: 

 

25.1.1 treat any financial information in relation to the Development (“Confidential 

Information”) as confidential and safeguard it accordingly; 
 

25.1.2 not disclose the Confidential Information to any other person without the prior 

written consent of the other Parties. 

 
25.2 Clause 25.1 shall not apply to the extent that: 
 

25.2.1  such disclosure is a requirement of law placed upon a Party making the 

disclosure, including any requirements for disclosure under the FOIA pursuant to 

clause 24; 

 

25.2.2 such information was in the possession of the Party making the disclosure 

without obligation of confidentiality prior to its disclosure by the information 

owner; 
 

25.2.3 such information was obtained from a third party without obligation of 

confidentiality; or 

 

25.2.4 such information was already in the public domain at the time of disclosure 

otherwise than by a breach of this agreement; 

 

25.2.5 such information is required to be registered at the Land Registry to the extent 

necessary to effect noting or registration at the Land Registry by means only of a 

Unilateral Notice but without sending this Agreement or any copy of it to the 

Land Registry or other public register or record; 

 

Page 49



 
 

31 

25.2.6 such information is required for HM Revenue and Customs or the rating 

authority; 

 
25.2.7  such information is required to the extent necessary to comply with statutory 

obligations; 

25.2.8 such information is required for audit purposes; 

25.2.9 such information is required to the extent ordered to do so by the court or any 

other competent authority 

25.3  The Parties hereto may only disclose the Confidential Information to those persons that 

it employs or engages directly involved in the provision of the Development and who 

need to know the information, and shall ensure that such persons are aware of and shall 

comply with these obligations as to confidentiality. 

 
26    DEVELOPER’S INDEMNITY 

26.1  The Developer is to indemnify the Council in respect of any of the following matters 

arising directly or indirectly in relation to the Works, the Property or any operations on 

the Property save where attributable to the action of the Council or its servants and 

agents: 

(a)  the death of, injury to or accident to any person; 

(b)  the damage to or loss of any property; 

 (c)  any breach of any statutory consents or statutory requirements; 

(d) the infringement of the rights of any third party  caused by the carrying out of the 

Works; 

(e)  any nuisance or disturbance suffered by any third party caused by the carrying out 

of the Works; 

(f) any fine or penalty; and 

(g)  any other third party claims. 

 

Page 50



 
 

32 

27.  DEALINGS 

 This Agreement is incapable of being assigned, held on trust or in any way being dealt 

with by the Developer save with the written consent of the Council. 

28.   COMMERCIAL CONDITIONS 

28.1   The Commercial Conditions are incorporated into this Agreement except insofar as any 

of them are inconsistent with or varied by any express terms of this Agreement. 

28.2   In addition to any modifications set out elsewhere in this Agreement the Commercial 

Conditions are amended as set out in the Fifth Schedule. 

29. PUBLICITY 

 The Parties agree that no Party shall issue a press or media briefing, statement or 

announcement in respect of the Development or this Agreement or any matters relating 

to this Agreement without first consulting with all the other Parties and obtaining their 

consent to such briefing, statement or announcement (such consent not to be 

unreasonably withheld or delayed). 

IN WITNESS whereof the Parties have executed this Agreement as a Deed the day and year first 

before written. 

 

  

Page 51



 
 

33 

THE FIRST SCHEDULE  

Development Plans and Specifications 

 

 

Page 52



 
 

34 

THE SECOND SCHEDULE 

Draft Lease 

 

  

Page 53



 
 

35 

THE THIRD SCHEDULE 

Draft Operational Agreement

Page 54



 
 

36 

 THE FOURTH SCHEDULE 

Form of Collateral Warranties 

 

1. Building Contractors collateral warranty. 
 

2. Architects, Structural Engineer and Mechanical and Electrical Engineer collateral warranties. 
 

 

  

Page 55



 
 

37 

THE FIFTH SCHEDULE 
 

Variations to the Commercial Conditions 

1 Exclusion of Commercial Conditions 

Commercial Conditions 2.2, 6.1.1, 6.3.2, 6.6.2, 8.1.1, 8.3.7, 10.2.4 and 10.3.5 are 

excluded. 

2.         Variation of Commercial Conditions 

2.1. Commercial Condition 8.3.2 reads “Apportionment is to be made with effect 

from the date of actual completion.” 

2.2. Commercial Condition 9.2(b) reads “The Developer is to return any documents 

received from the Council and is to cancel any registration of the contract within 

14 days and if the Developer fails to do so the Council’s solicitors may do so on 

its behalf.” 

2.3. In Commercial Condition 9.3.2, the words “between completion date and actual 

completion” are replaced by “from and including the completion date to and 

including actual completion”. 

2.4. Standard Condition 3.1.2 will have added to it a new sub clause 3.1.2(f) which 
shall read:  

“Any unregistered interests which override:  

2.4.1. first registration under schedule 1 Land Registration Act 2002  

2.4.2. registered dispositions under schedule 3 Land Registration Act 2002 or  

2.4.3. either of them under schedule 12 Land Registration Act 2002” 

The covenants implied under section 2(1)(b) Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 

are varied by the replacement of the words “at his own cost” by the words “at the cost of the 
person requiring compliance with this covenant”. 

  

Page 56



 
 

38 

THE SIXTH SCHEDULE 
 

Projected Cash Flow Forecast 
 
 

  

Page 57



 
 

39 

THE SEVENTH SCHEDULE 

Provisions in respect of obtaining the Planning Permission 

 
1. The Developer shall use its reasonable endeavours to procure that the Planning Permission 

is obtained as soon as reasonably practicable but in any event by the Planning Permission 

Longstop Date and for that purpose the Developer shall (without prejudice to the generality 

of the foregoing):- 

 
1.1. appoint any consultants necessary for the Planning Application; 

 
1.2. progress the Planning Application as expeditiously as reasonably possible. In relation to 

the preparation and submission of the Planning Application the Parties acknowledge:- 

 
1.2.1. the Planning Application will be prepared and submitted on the basis of the 

Development Plans and Specifications; 

 
1.2.2. the Planning Application will be prepared and submitted on the basis that no 

financial Planning Obligation shall be required by the Local Planning Authority in 

respect of the Development; 

 
1.2.3. the Planning Application shall first be submitted to the Council and such 

application and all amendments thereto shall be approved (with their 

accompanying plans) in writing by the Council as landowner (marked for the 

attention of [insert title of appropriate officers at the Council]) prior to submission 

to the Council as Local Planning Authority.  Such approval by the Council as 

landowner shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

1.3. enter into any Planning Obligation in a form previously approved in writing by the 

Council and the Developer.   

 
2. The Developer may not withdraw the Planning Application or amend or modify the Planning 

Application in any material respect or submit further planning applications (other than 

duplicates of a Planning Application) without the prior written consent of the other Parties. 

 
3. The Council shall not be obliged to enter into a Planning Obligation in its capacity as land 

owner. 

 

Page 58



 
 

40 

4. The Developer may not without the prior written consent of the other Parties agree with the 

Local Planning Authority an extended period for the Local Planning Authority to determine 

the Planning Application. 

 
5. If the Planning Application is refused or deemed to be refused by the Local Planning Authority 

the Developer shall have no obligation to lodge an appeal against such refusal or deemed 

refusal with the Secretary of State. 

 
6. If the Local Planning Authority issues a planning permission which contains an Onerous 

Condition or Onerous Conditions then such a planning permission shall not be a Planning 

Permission for the purposes of this Agreement and the Developer shall have no obligation to 

appeal against such planning permission or such conditions. 

 
7. If the Planning Application is the subject of a call-in by the Secretary of State or a refusal or 

deemed refusal by the Local Planning Authority the Developer may terminate this Agreement 

at any time thereafter by serving notice in writing on all the other Parties and this Agreement 

shall terminate on the service of such notice but without prejudice to the accrued rights and 

liabilities of any Party against any other Party. 

 
8. The Developer shall within 20 Working Days of receipt by it (or any person acting on its behalf) 

of any Planning Permission notify the Council in writing whether in the Developer’s opinion 

(and at the Developer’s absolute discretion) the Planning Permission is subject to Onerous 

Conditions and if so the Developer shall specify, with reasons, which conditions or provisions 

it considers to be Onerous Conditions. 

 
9. If the Developer fails to comply with paragraph 8 then the Developer shall be deemed to have 

accepted that the Planning Permission is satisfactory on the date of expiry of the 20 Working 

Days 

 

10. The Developer shall keep the other Parties fully informed of the progress of the Planning 

Application and in particular:- 

 
10.1 keep the other Parties advised of all meetings, discussions and negotiations in 

connection with the Planning Application with the Local Planning Authority or any 

authority, body or person consulted in connection with the Planning Application 

pursuant to the requirements of the Act or with any third party (giving each other as 

Page 59



 
 

41 

much notice as reasonably possible of all such meetings) and ensure that they each 

have copies of all material correspondence in connection with the Planning 

Application; 

 
10.2 provide to the other Parties regular written reports as to the progress of any 

preparatory work in connection with any Planning Application. 

 
11.1 The Developer shall within five Working Days of receipt of a Planning Permission or refusal 

of the Planning Application send a copy of the same to the other Parties; 

 
11.2 None of the Parties shall submit or cause to be submitted or pursue or assist in pursuing 

any application for planning permission which will have an adverse effect on the chances 

of obtaining the Planning Permission. 

 
12. For the avoidance of doubt nothing in this Agreement or this Seventh Schedule shall 

derogate from the Council's powers and duties as planning authority or impose any 

obligation on the Council to approve the Planning Application or grant Planning Permission 

or enter into a Planning Obligation. 

  

Page 60



 
 

42 

 
EXECUTED as a deed by 
affixing the Common Seal of 
[INSERT NAME OF COUNCIL] 
in the presence of:- 
 
       Authorised Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTED as a deed by 
[INSERT NAME OF YOUTH ZONE CHARITY] 
acting by a director  
in the presence of:- 
 
 
Signature of Director: 
 
Signature of witness: 
 
Name (in BLOCK CAPITALS): 
 
Address: 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTED as a deed by 
ONSIDE YOUTH ZONES 
acting by a director 
in the presence of:- 
 
 
Signature of Director: 
 
Signature of witness: 
 
Name (in BLOCK CAPITALS): 
 
Address: 
         
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



18.12.10_Operational Agreement_OnSide Youth Zones_Template_Clean 

 

Dated                                                20[    ] 

 
 

 

 

[Insert name of relevant Council] 

 
and 

 
[Insert name of relevant Youth Zone Charity] 

 
and 

 
ONSIDE YOUTH ZONES 

 

 

 

OPERATIONAL AGREEMENT 
in respect of [Insert name of relevant Youth Zone and address] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 63



1 
 

 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made the                                                                     20[      ]   
 
BETWEEN: 
 
(1) [Insert name of relevant Council] of [insert address] (“the Council”); and 

 
(2) [Insert name of relevant Youth Zone Charity] (Company Number [insert] - Charity 

Number [Insert]) whose registered office is at [insert as appropriate] (“XYZ”); and 

 
(3) ONSIDE YOUTH ZONES (Company Number 06591785 - Charity Number 1125893) 

whose registered office is at Atria, Spa Road, Bolton, BL1 4AG (“OnSide”). 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
(A) OnSide has supported the Cross-Sector Partnership to develop a proposal for the 

construction and future operation of the Youth Zone; 

 
(B) The Council has granted the Lease for no consideration and has contributed a capital 

sum of [insert amount of agreed capital contribution] (£insert appropriate figures) 

towards the cost of construction of the Youth Zone; 

 
 
(C) OnSide and XYZ have coordinated the raising of a further capital sum of  [insert 

amount of current capital shortfall in words] Pounds (£insert appropriate figures)  

towards the cost of construction of the Youth Zone; 

 
(D) OnSide has been acting as a consultant providing a comprehensive support service 

to XYZ and the Cross-Sector Partnership including capital delivery and business 

planning and has advised on the construction of the Youth Zone and formation of 

XYZ as a new charitable and sustainable delivery organisation to provide Core 

Universal Services for children and young people at and from the Youth Zone; 

 
(E) The Parties have agreed to work together and enter into certain mutual 

commitments to regulate their rights and obligations in relation to the 

establishment and operation of the Youth Zone as set out in this Agreement. 

 
 
 

Page 64



2 
 

NOW IT IS AGREED as follows: 
 
1  Definitions and interpretation 
 
1.1  In this Agreement unless the context otherwise requires: 

 
“Agreement” means this written agreement between the 

Parties; 

 
“Commencement Date” means the date of this Agreement; 

 
“Confidential Information” means any information which has been 

designated as confidential by a Party in 

writing or that ought to be considered as 

confidential (however it is conveyed or on 

whatever media it is stored) including 

information the disclosure of which would, 

or would be likely to, prejudice the 

commercial interests of any person, trade 

secrets, intellectual property rights and 

know-how of a Party.  Confidential 

Information shall not include information 

which:  

 
(a) was public knowledge at the time of 

disclosure (otherwise than by breach 

of clause 11 (Confidential 

Information));  

(b) was in the possession of the receiving 

Party, without restriction as to its 

disclosure, before receiving it from the 

disclosing Party;  

(c) is received from a third party (who 

lawfully acquired it) without restriction 

as to its disclosure; or 

(d) is independently developed without 

Page 65



3 
 

access to the Confidential Information; 

  

“Core Universal Services” means services to help and educate 

children and young people by providing 

them with activity based services to 

promote their physical, intellectual and 

social potential.   For the avoidance of 

doubt Core Universal Services shall not 

include any services provided to children 

and young people on an individual, 

targeted or specialist basis; 

 
“Cross-Sector Partnership” means a joint initiative between the 

Council, OnSide and private sector 

benefactors for the development and 

establishment of the Youth Zone; 

 
“Default” means a material breach of the terms of 

this Agreement; 

 
“EIR” means the Environmental Information 

Regulations 2004 and any guidance and/or 

codes of practice issued by the Information 

Commissioner or relevant government 

department in relation to such regulations; 

 
“Expiry Date” means the third anniversary of the 

Operational Start Date; 

 
“FOIA”  means the Freedom of Information Act 

2000 and any subordinate legislation made 

under such Act from time to time together 

with any guidance and/or codes of practice 

issued by the Information Commissioner or 

relevant government department in 

relation to such legislation; 

Page 66



4 
 

 
“Information” has the meaning given under Section 84 of 

the FOIA; 

 
“Interest Rate” means 3% above base lending rate from 

time to time of Co-operative Bank Plc or 

such comparable rate of interest as OnSide 

may reasonably determine 

 

“Lease” means the lease of the Property dated [                               

] 20[   ] made between the Council (1)  and 

XYZ (2); 

 
“OnSide Network” means the growing national network of 

youth zones (all being similar facilities to 

the Youth Zone and offering similar 

services to children and young people in 

other parts of the country); 

    

“Operational Start Date” means the date on which the Youth Zone 

opens for use by children and young 

people; 

 
“Parties” means the parties to this Agreement and 

"Party" shall have a corresponding 

meaning; 

 
“Planning Permission” means the planning permission issued by 

the Council dated [insert date] under 

reference [insert reference] in its capacity 

as local planning authority for the 

construction and use of the Youth Zone on 

the Property; 

         
“Property”  the land at [insert suitable description] 

more particularly described in, and edged 

Page 67



5 
 

red on the plan attached to, the Lease 

together with the Youth Zone building 

erected thereon; 

 
“Request for Information”  shall have the meaning set out in FOIA or 

the  EIR as relevant (where the meaning set 

out for the term “request” shall apply); 

 

“Scrutiny Board”  means a review board panel or other body  

of the Council established under Section 21 

of the Local Government Act 2000 and 

related legislation; 

  

“Value Added Tax” and “VAT” means value added tax chargeable under 

the Value Added Tax Act 1994 and any 

similar replacement tax; 

 
“Value for Money” means that all contracts and purchases to 

be entered into by OnSide and/or XYZ for 

the operation of the Youth Zone shall 

ensure that good value is obtained taking 

into account the quality of the goods or 

services, the speed of delivery and 

compliance with all appropriate 

specifications and statutory requirements; 

 
“Working Day” means a day (other than a Saturday or 

Sunday) on which banks are open for 

general business in the City of London; 

 
“Young People’s Development 

Group” 

means the group of young people who 

have been actively involved in the 

development of the Youth Zone project 

and who have expressed a desire to remain 

involved in further development of the 

Page 68



6 
 

Youth Zone; 

 
“Youth Zone” means the facility for children and young 

people of [insert name of town, city or 

borough] and the surrounding areas 

providing Core Universal Services which is 

situate at the Property; 

 
1.2 The interpretation and construction of this Agreement shall be subject to the 

following provisions:- 

 
(a) words importing the singular meaning include where the context so admits 

the plural meaning and vice versa; 

 
(b) words importing the masculine include the feminine and the neuter;  

 
(c) reference to a clause is a reference to a clause of this Agreement and to the 

whole of that clause unless stated otherwise; 

 
(d)  reference to any statute, enactment, order, regulation or other similar 

instrument shall be construed as a reference to the statute, enactment, 

order, regulation or instrument as amended by any subsequent enactment, 

modification, order, regulation or instrument as subsequently amended or 

re-enacted; 

 
(e) reference to any person shall include natural persons and partnerships, 

firms and other incorporated bodies and all other legal persons of whatever 

kind and however constituted and their successors and permitted assigns or 

transferees; 

 
(f) the words “include”, “includes” and “including” are to be construed as if 

they were immediately followed by the words “without limitation”;  

 
(g) headings are included in the Agreement for ease of reference only and shall 

not affect the interpretation or construction of it; 

 

Page 69



7 
 

(h) any covenant by a Party not to do an act or thing shall be deemed to include 

an obligation not to permit or suffer such act or thing to be done by another 

person. 

 
1.3 Save as otherwise expressly provided, the obligations of the Council under this 

Agreement are obligations of the Council in its capacity as a contracting counterparty 

and nothing in the Agreement shall operate as an obligation upon, or in any other 

way fetter or constrain the Council in any other capacity, nor shall the exercise by the 

Council of its duties and powers in any other capacity lead to any liability under this 

Agreement (howsoever arising) on the part of the Council to the other Parties. 

 
2  Commencement and term 
 

This Agreement comes into force on the Commencement Date and shall end on the 

Expiry Date, unless it is otherwise terminated or extended in accordance with the 

provisions of this Agreement and except in relation to clauses 9 (Discrimination), 11 

(Confidential Information), 12 (Freedom of Information) and 15 (Liabilities and 

Indemnities) the provisions of which shall continue to apply after the Expiry Date. 

 

Council’s Obligations 
 
3.1 The Council shall provide appropriate advice and guidance to the Parties with regard 

to the Youth Zone and its operation and in particular advise on the strategic priorities 

of the Council with the expectation that XYZ will give due consideration to this advice 

and guidance in regard to the operation of the Youth Zone. 

 
3.2 The Council shall during the term of this Agreement nominate a suitably experienced 

and qualified individual to be a director and trustee of XYZ.    

 
3.3 The Council shall for a minimum period of 3 years from the Operational Start Date 

contribute by way of grant to XYZ the sum of [insert amount of agreed revenue 

contribution] pounds (£insert appropriate figures) towards the anticipated revenue 

costs of operating the Core Universal Services at the Youth Zone. 

  
3.4 Payments in respect of the Council's grant in accordance with clause 3.3 are to be 

made quarterly in advance by the Council to XYZ following receipt of an appropriate 

request for payment from XYZ. 

Page 70



8 
 

 
3.5 The Council’s grant in accordance with clause 3.3 shall be reviewed on the third 

anniversary of the Operational Start Date. The Council shall as soon as practicable 

after making any decision to continue, increase, reduce or cease its grant notify the 

other Parties in writing of its decision and such increase, reduction or cessation shall 

not take effect until 6 months after the date of such notice. 

 
OnSide's Obligations 
 
4.1 OnSide agrees with the Council and XYZ to:- 

 
4.1.1  act as lead organisation supporting XYZ for the purposes of raising the first 

three years anticipated revenue costs of operating the Youth Zone to the 

extent that it is not provided by the Council pursuant to the provisions of 

clause 3; 

 
4.1.2  take all reasonable steps to ensure that Value for Money is achieved; 

 
4.1.3  take all reasonable steps to support XYZ to apply all appropriate policies and 

procedures to ensure that the development and initial operation of the Youth 

Zone are compliant with all relevant statutory requirements and are 

protective of children, young people and vulnerable adults; 

 
4.1.4 support the development of the Youth Zone by coordinating the engagement 

and involvement of local groups and stakeholders including the Young 

People's Development Group; 

 
4.1.5 provide advice and feedback based on experience from the OnSide Network; 

 
4.1.6 promote the Youth Zone as part of the OnSide Network and to encourage 

collaboration between organisations in the OnSide Network; 

 
4.1.7 attend the XYZ board meetings in an advisory capacity during the period of 

three years from the Commencement Date or for so long as the Youth Zone 

remains a member of the OnSide Network PROVIDED that OnSide’s obligation 

in this clause will be satisfied if a person nominated by OnSide is appointed a 

director and trustee of XYZ pursuant to the conditions of any grant made to 

XYZ by The OnSide Foundation (Charity Number: 1157252) or otherwise.  

Page 71



9 
 

 
4.2  OnSide agrees with XYZ to: 

 
4.2.1 take all reasonable steps to recruit and train suitable members to the board 

of directors of XYZ ensuring cross-sector representation; 

 
4.2.2 assist in the recruitment and training of key staff for the Youth Zone by:- 

 
a) ensuring that contractual requirements in relation to staff recruitment, 

appointment, induction, training and supervision are adhered to and 

that safeguarding policies are evidenced and implemented 

 
b) ensuring that the Council’s safeguarding policies are adhered to and 

that suitable procedures are implemented to ensure all staff and 

volunteers complete an appropriate safeguarding training course within 

the six months following commencement of their engagement 

 
c)  ensuring that suitable procedures are implemented for all staff to be 

provided with guidance notes, and relevant policies and procedures on 

good practice including safeguarding, confidentiality, health and safety, 

dealing with complaints, recording of incidents, personal conduct etc. 

 

d) ensuring that suitable procedures are implemented for the Council to 

be informed of all allegations of any unlawful acts (relevant to their 

duties) which are reported against any staff and for the Council to be 

kept informed of the details of all investigations and all necessary action 

taken. 

 
4.2.3 provide XYZ with the opportunity (where appropriate) for its appointed key 

staff and volunteers to receive on the job experience at one or more of the 

other facilities in the OnSide Network; 

 
4.2.4 take all reasonable steps to support and assist XYZ to establish and maintain 

sound and sustainable methods of income generation for XYZ and to establish 

appropriate policies, procedures and operating methods to support the long 

term viability of the Youth Zone; 

 

Page 72



10 
 

4.2.5 take all reasonable steps to support and assist XYZ to establish and maintain 

appropriate policies, procedures and operating methods (including those 

relating to safeguarding, health and safety and security) to ensure lawful and 

best practice in the operation of the Youth Zone. 

 
4.3  OnSide agrees with the Council and XYZ to take all reasonable steps to support and 

assist XYZ to ensure that proper books of account as to the operation of the Youth 

Zone are created and kept in accordance with established and recognised accounting 

practices and can be audited by the Council and XYZ.   

 
4.4 OnSide agrees with the Council and XYZ to:- 

 
4.4.1 assist XYZ in the recruitment of a competent chief executive officer to manage 

the operation of the Youth Zone on a full time basis on behalf of XYZ including 

offering guidance on the terms and conditions (including remuneration) of 

such person’s employment contract; and 

 
4.4.2 advise and support XYZ in the recruitment of a youth work manager and other 

key senior staff for the Youth Zone. 

 
4.5 OnSide shall provide the other Parties with such information as they shall reasonably 

require in relation to any matters arising under this clause. 

 
XYZ’s Obligations 
 
5.1  XYZ agrees with the Council to operate the Youth Zone in a proper and efficient 

manner in compliance with all relevant statutory requirements and in accordance 

with the terms of the Lease and the Planning Permission and the reasonable 

recommendations of OnSide pursuant to the provisions of clause 4. 

 
5.2 XYZ agrees with the Council that during the term of this Agreement it will permit 

suitably experienced and qualified individuals nominated by the Council to be 

directors and trustees of XYZ Provided That the number of directors and trustees 

nominated by the Council shall not exceed 20% of the total number of directors for 

the time being of XYZ. 

 
5.3 XYZ agrees with the Council to take all reasonable steps to ensure that Value for 

Money is achieved. 

Page 73



11 
 

 
5.4    XYZ agrees with the Council to ensure that all key staff and volunteers for the Youth 

Zone receive appropriate training and guidance with regard to policies and 

procedures for the safeguarding of children, young people and vulnerable adults. 

 
5.5 XYZ agrees with the Council to have a written formal compliments/complaints 

procedure and to provide a copy of this procedure to the Council. The 

compliments/complaints procedure shall be reviewed by XYZ annually. The 

compliments/complaints procedure shall include the following features: 

 
a) All staff shall be given written information on the procedure and how to use it.  

 
b) All complaints shall be treated seriously and investigated. 

 
c) A record of complaints made and action taken shall be kept and periodically 

reviewed by XYZ’s chief executive officer. 

   

d) Information about the outcome of any material complaint made and what 

action has been taken shall be provided to the Council. 

 
e) The procedure shall include reasonable timescales for dealing with complaints 

and an appeals process. 

 
f) XYZ shall allow officers of the Council access to all relevant reviews of the 

procedure for the purpose of monitoring at all reasonable times. 

 

5.6 XYZ agrees with the Council to use its reasonable endeavours to employ a reasonable 

proportion of paid staff and volunteers at the Youth Zone who live in the [insert name 

of town, city or borough] area subject to such staff and volunteers being suitably 

skilled and available. 

 
6 Branding and Publicity 

 
6.1 The Parties hereby agree that all publicity, marketing and branding of the Youth Zone 

before the Operational Start Date shall be coordinated by OnSide subject to final 

approval by the board of directors of XYZ provided that all publicity activity and 

branding or other marketing information shall where reasonably practicable be 

Page 74



12 
 

approved by the other Parties before its publication.   After the Operational Start Date 

all publicity and branding or other marketing information shall be coordinated by XYZ. 

 
6.2 In relation to any publicity, marketing and branding OnSide and XYZ shall adhere to 

the following branding and publicity requirements:- 

 
6.2.1 include the Council's logo and OnSide‘s logo on appropriate publicity 

materials relating to the Youth Zone; 

 
6.2.2 include the Council’s logo and OnSide‘s logo on the main/home page of any 

website relating to the Youth Zone, along with links to [insert web address of 

the Council] and www.onsideyouthzones.org; 

 
6.2.3 where reasonably practicable notify in advance, and liaise and consult with 

the Council’s communications officer and OnSide‘s Head of Communications 

with regards to all press releases about the Youth Zone; 

 
6.2.4 subject to prior approval of materials, agree to the inclusion and promotion 

of the Youth Zone in any Council or OnSide communication for example, 

newsletter, annual report, case study or website.   

 
7 Notices 
 
7.1 No formal notice from one Party to the other shall have any validity under the 

Agreement unless made in writing by or on behalf of the Party concerned. 

 

7.2 Any formal notice which is to be given by a Party to another shall be given by letter 

(sent by hand, first class post, recorded delivery or special delivery), or by facsimile 

transmission (confirmed by letter).  Such letters shall be addressed to the other 

Parties in the manner referred to in clause 7.3.  Provided the relevant communication 

is not returned as undelivered, the notice or communication shall be deemed to have 

been given 2 Working Days after the day on which the letter was posted, or 4 hours, 

in the case of facsimile transmission sent prior to 1pm on a Working Day or the next 

Working Day if sent after 1pm or on a day which is not a Working Day or sooner 

where the receiving Party acknowledges receipt of such letters or facsimile 

transmission. 

 

Page 75



13 
 

7.3 For the purposes of clause 7.2, the address of each Party shall be: 

 
7.3.1 For the Council: 

[insert name of Council] 

[insert appropriate address for the Council] 

 
For the attention of: The Chief Executive 

 
Tel: [insert appropriate telephone number] 

 

7.3.2 For XYZ: 

[insert name of Youth Zone charity] 

[insert appropriate address for XYZ] 

 
For the attention of: The Chairman 

Tel: [insert appropriate telephone number] 

 

 

7.3.3 For OnSide: 

OnSide Youth Zones 

Atria 

Spa Road 

Bolton 

BL1 4AG 

 
For the attention of: The Chief Executive 

Tel: 01204 362128 

 

 
 

7.4 Any Party may change its address for service by serving a notice in accordance with 

this clause. 

 
8 Prevention of Corruption 
 
8.1 OnSide and XYZ shall not offer or give, or agree to give, to the Council or to any 

person employed by or on behalf of the Council any gift or consideration of any kind 

as an inducement or reward for doing, refraining from doing, or for having done or 

Page 76



14 
 

refrained from doing, any act in relation to the obtaining or execution of this 

Agreement or any other agreement with the Council or for showing or refraining 

from showing favour or disfavour to any person in relation to this Agreement or any 

other. 

 
8.2 If OnSide or XYZ, their employees or anyone acting on their behalf, engages in 

conduct prohibited by clause 8.1 the Council may terminate this Agreement. 

 
9 Discrimination 
 
 No Party shall unlawfully discriminate against any child, young person or vulnerable 

young adult seeking to use the Youth Zone or any employee of XYZ  either directly or 

indirectly on such grounds as race, colour, ethnic or national origin, disability, sex or 

sexual orientation, religion or belief, or (in the case of employees only) age within 

the meaning and scope of the Sex Discrimination Act 1975, the Race Relations Act 

1976, the Equal Pay Act 1970, the Disability Discrimination Act 1995, the 

Employment Equality (Sexual Orientation) Regulations 2003, the Employment 

Equality (Religion or Belief) Regulations 2003, the Employment Equality (Age) 

Regulations 2006, the Equality Act 2010, the Human Rights Act 1998 or other 

relevant or equivalent legislation, or any statutory modification or re-enactment 

thereof.  

 

10 Accountability to the Scrutiny Board [Drafting note: Amend or omit this clause and 

the definition of ‘Scrutiny Board’ in clause 1.1 to suit the standing orders or other reasonable 

preferences of the Council] 

 
10.1 Under its constitutional arrangements, the Council has separated its executive and 

scrutiny processes.  The Scrutiny Board oversees and scrutinises the decisions of the 

Council. 

 
10.2 OnSide (up to the date 12 months after the Operational Start Date) and/or XYZ (at 

any time) may be required to attend any relevant Scrutiny Board and shall be 

obliged to attend (subject to receipt of 5 Working Days prior notice) to answer 

questions relating to this Agreement, the Youth Zone and to account for the grant 

funding made available to it by the Council pursuant to clause 3. 

 

Page 77



15 
 

10.3 Subject to Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, OnSide and/or 

XYZ may request to attend any relevant Scrutiny Board where this Agreement, the 

Youth Zone or the grant funding made available to it pursuant to clause 3 are being 

discussed in which case if the Scrutiny Board agrees to XYZ’s and/or Onside’s 

attendance the Council will use reasonable endeavours to give prior notice to 

OnSide and XYZ. 

 
11 Confidential Information  

 
11.1 Except to the extent set out in this clause each Party shall: 

11.1.1 treat the other Party's Confidential Information as confidential and 

safeguard it accordingly; and 

 
11.1.2 not disclose another Party's Confidential Information to any other person 

without the relevant Party's prior written consent.  

 
11.2 Clause 11.1 shall not apply to the extent that:  
 

11.2.1 such disclosure is a requirement of law placed upon the Party making the 

disclosure, including any requirements for disclosure under the FOIA or the 

EIR pursuant to clause 12 (Freedom of Information);  

 
11.2.2 such information was in the possession of the Party making the disclosure 

without obligation of confidentiality prior to its disclosure by the 

information owner;  

 

11.2.3 such information was obtained from a third party without obligation of 

confidentiality;  

 
11.2.4 such information was already in the public domain at the time of disclosure 

otherwise than by a breach of this clause; or  

 
11.2.5  it is independently developed without access to the other Party's 

Confidential Information.  

 

Page 78



16 
 

12 Freedom of Information 
 
12.1 The Parties acknowledge that the Council is subject to the requirements of the FOIA 

and the EIR and shall assist and cooperate with the Council to enable it to comply 

with its Information disclosure obligations.  

 
12.2 OnSide and/or XYZ shall within 5 Working Days (or such other period as the Council 

may reasonably specify) of a request from the Council;  

 
12.2.1 provide the Council with a copy of all relevant information in its 

possession, or power in the form that the Council reasonably requires; and  

 
12.2.2 provide all necessary assistance as reasonably requested by the Council to 

enable the Council to respond to the Request for Information within the 

time for compliance set out in Section 10 of the FOIA or Regulation 5 of the 

EIR.  

 
12.3 The Council shall be responsible for determining in its absolute discretion (but acting 

reasonably) whether any Information is exempt from disclosure in accordance with 

the provisions of the FOIA or the EIR.  

 
12.4 In no event shall OnSide or XYZ respond directly to a Request for Information unless 

expressly authorised to do so by the Council.  

 
13 Waiver 

 
13.1 The failure of any Party to insist upon strict performance of any provision of the 

Agreement, or the failure of any Party to exercise, or any delay in exercising, any 

right or remedy shall not constitute a waiver of that right or remedy and shall not 

cause a diminution of the obligations established by this Agreement. 

 
13.2 No waiver shall be effective unless it is expressly stated to be a waiver and 

communicated to the Party concerned in writing in accordance with clause 7 

(Notices). 

 
13.3 A waiver of any right or remedy arising from a breach of this Agreement shall not 

constitute a waiver of any right or remedy arising from any other or subsequent 

breach. 

Page 79



17 
 

 
14 Severability 
 

If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any 

reason by any court of competent jurisdiction, such provision shall be severed and 

the remainder of the provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and 

effect as if this Agreement had been executed with the invalid, illegal or 

unenforceable provision eliminated. 

 
15 Liabilities and Indemnities 

15.1 Each Party agrees to fully and promptly indemnify the other Parties against all losses 

(other than consequential loss), damages, costs, expenses, liabilities, claims or 

proceedings, whether these arise under statute or common law, (together referred 

to as ‘losses’) which are suffered as a result of any negligence, default or breach of 

statutory duty on the indemnifying Party’s part in carrying out its obligations under 

this Agreement or on the part of any person employed or engaged to carry out any 

obligations under this Agreement. 

15.2 A Party will not be liable to indemnify the other Parties as set out in clause 15.1 to 

the extent that any losses are due to any negligence, default or breach of statutory 

duty on the other Party’s part, or on the part of any of its employees acting in the 

course of their employment.  

15.3 A Party’s liability for any losses which relate to death or personal injury caused by 

any action or activity of any person it is legally responsible for shall be unlimited. 

16 Termination on insolvency/termination of Lease 
 
16.1 The Council may terminate this Agreement with immediate effect by notice in 

writing to the other Parties where any of the following occurs in respect of XYZ:- 

 
16.1.1 a proposal is made for a voluntary arrangement within Part I of the 

Insolvency Act 1986 or of any other composition scheme or arrangement 

with, or assignment for the benefit of, its creditors; or 

 
16.1.2 a shareholders’ meeting is convened for the purpose of considering a 

resolution that it be wound up or a resolution for its winding-up is passed 

(other than as part of, and exclusively for the purpose of, a bona fide 

Page 80



18 
 

reconstruction or amalgamation); or 

 
16.1.3  a petition is presented for its winding up (which is not dismissed within 14 

days of its service) or an application is made for the appointment of a 

provisional liquidator or a creditors’ meeting is convened pursuant to 

Section 98 of the Insolvency Act 1986; or 

 
16.1.4  a receiver, administrative receiver or similar officer is appointed over the 

whole or any part of its business or assets; or 

 
16.1.5 an application order is made either for the appointment of an administrator 

or for an administration order, an administrator is appointed, or notice of 

intention to appoint an administrator is given; or 

 
16.1.6 it is or becomes insolvent within the meaning of Section 123 of the 

Insolvency Act 1986; or 

 
16.1.7 being a “small company” within the meaning of Section 247(3) of the 

Companies Act 1985, a moratorium comes into force pursuant to Schedule 

A1 of the Insolvency Act 1986; or 

 
16.1.8  the termination of the Lease. 

16.2 The Council may not exercise its rights under clause 16.1 during the first three years 

of this Agreement if the principal reason for the relevant event or events listed in 

clause 16.1 is the withdrawal, reduction or cessation of funding by the Council. 

17 Termination on Default 

 
 Any of the Parties may terminate this Agreement by written notice to the other 

Parties with immediate effect if a Party commits a Default and if: 

 
17.1 the defaulting Party has not remedied the Default to the reasonable 

satisfaction of the other Parties within 25 Working Days, or such other 

reasonable period as may be specified by the Parties, after issue of a written 

notice specifying the Default and requesting it to be remedied; or 

 
17.2 the Default is not, in the reasonable opinion of the Parties, capable of 

Page 81



19 
 

remedy. 

 
18 Termination of the term 

 This Agreement shall determine and expire on the Expiry Date unless all the Parties 

agree in writing that the provisions of this Agreement shall continue after the Expiry 

Date for such extended period and on such terms as the Parties shall agree and 

except in relation to clauses 9 (Discrimination), 11 (Confidential Information), 12 

(Freedom of Information) and 15 (liabilities and Indemnities) the provisions of which 

shall continue to apply after the Expiry Date. 

 
19 Governing Law and Jurisdiction 

 
 Subject to clause 20 (Dispute Resolution) the Parties accept the exclusive jurisdiction 

of the English courts and agree that any matters arising from or connected with the 

Agreement are to be governed and construed according to English Law. 

 
20 Dispute Resolution 

 
20.1 The Parties shall attempt in good faith to negotiate a settlement to any dispute 

between them arising out of or in connection with this Agreement within 20 

Working Days of a Party notifying the other Parties of the dispute and such efforts 

shall involve the escalation of the dispute to senior officers of the Parties. 

 
20.2 Nothing in this clause 20 shall prevent the Parties from seeking from any court of 

competent jurisdiction an interim order restraining another Party from doing any act 

or compelling the other Party to do any act. 

 
20.3 If the dispute cannot be resolved by the Parties pursuant to clause 20.1 the Parties 

shall refer it to mediation pursuant to the procedure set out in clause 20.5 unless (a) 

the Parties consider that the dispute is not suitable for resolution by mediation; or 

(b) the Parties do not agree to mediation.   

 

20.4 The obligations of the Parties under this Agreement shall not cease, or be suspended 

or delayed by the reference of a dispute to mediation (or to the Courts) and the 

Parties shall comply fully with the requirements of this Agreement at all times. 

 
20.5 The procedure for mediation and consequential provisions relating to mediation are 

as follows: 

Page 82



20 
 

 
20.5.1 a professional neutral adviser or mediator (the “Mediator”) shall be chosen 

by agreement between the Parties or, if they are unable to agree upon a 

Mediator within 10 Working Days after a request by one Party to the 

others or if the Mediator agreed upon is unable or unwilling to act, either 

Party shall within 10 Working Days from the date of the proposal to 

appoint a Mediator or within 10 Working Days of notice to each Party that 

he is unable or unwilling to act, apply to the Centre for Effective Dispute 

Resolution to appoint a Mediator. 

 
20.5.2 The Parties shall within 10 Working Days of the appointment of the 

Mediator meet with him in order to agree a programme for the exchange 

of all relevant information and the structure to be adopted for negotiations 

to be held.  If considered appropriate, the Parties may at any stage seek 

assistance from the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution to provide 

guidance on a suitable procedure. 

 
20.5.3 Unless otherwise agreed, all negotiations connected with the dispute and 

any settlement agreement relating to it shall be conducted in confidence 

and without prejudice to the rights of the Parties in any future 

proceedings. 

 
20.5.4 If the Parties reach agreement on the resolution of the dispute, the 

agreement shall be recorded in writing and shall be binding on the Parties 

once it is signed by their duly authorised representatives. 

 
20.5.5  If the Parties fail to reach agreement in the structured negotiations within 

60 Working Days of the Mediator being appointed, or such longer period as 

may be agreed by the Parties, then any dispute or difference between them 

may be referred to the Courts. 

21 Counterparts  
 
 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which when executed and 

delivered shall constitute an original but all counterparts together shall constitute 

one and the same instrument. 

 

Page 83



21 
 

22 The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 
 
 Any person who is not a party to this Agreement shall have no right to enforce any 

of its provisions which, expressly or by implication, confer a benefit on him, without 

the prior written agreement of the Parties. This clause does not affect any right or 

remedy of any person which exists or is available apart from the Contracts (Rights of 

Third Parties) Act 1999. 

 
23 Charitable Status 
 
 The Property is leased to XYZ which is a non-exempt charity and the restrictions on 

disposition imposed by Sections 117 to 121 of the Charities Act 2011 will apply to 

the Property. 

 
24 Assignment 
 
24.1 No Party shall be entitled to assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement 

without the consent in writing of the other Parties. 

 
24.2 Save as provided in clause 24.1 the Parties may not assign, transfer or hold on trust 

for another Party or purport to assign, transfer any of their rights and obligations 

under this Agreement or enter into any agreement to do so without in each case the 

consent of the other Parties. 

 
24.3 On any permitted assignment pursuant to clause 24.1 or clause 24.2 the assignor will 

procure that on or before the date of such assignment the approved assignee enters 

into a Deed of Covenant to observe and perform the obligations of the assignor 

under this Agreement such Deed of Covenant to be in a form reasonably approved 

by the other Parties. 

24.4      Nothing in this Agreement shall create, or be deemed to create, a partnership, or the 

 relationship of principal and agent, between the Parties.  

 
24.5  The Parties will act in good faith towards each other in relation to and achieving 

each Party’s obligations and in complying with this Agreement. 

24.6     Each Party shall from time to time do all such acts and execute all such documents 

 as may be reasonably necessary in order to give effect to the provisions of this 

 Agreement.  

Page 84



22 
 

25 VAT 
 
25.1 All sums payable under this Agreement by one Party to another shall be deemed to 

be exclusive of VAT and the party paying any such sums shall also at the same time 

pay any VAT properly payable in respect thereof upon receipt of a valid VAT invoice 

addressed to the paying party. 

 
25.2 Where any Party is obliged to pay or reimburse any third party costs or expenses 

incurred by another Party the Party so paying or reimbursing shall in addition pay or 

reimburse any VAT payable in respect thereof save to the extent that the other Party 

is entitled to repayment or credit in respect of such VAT. 

 

25.3 For the avoidance of doubt the provision of grant funding by the Council pursuant to 

the provisions of clauses 3 shall not be VATable. 

 

26 Interest on Late Payment 

 

If a Party does not pay any of the sums due under this Agreement within seven days 

of the due date for payment the Party in default will pay interest on those sums, 

both after as well as before judgment, at 4% per annum above the Interest Rate for 

the period from and including the due date for payment to and including the date of 

actual payment 

 

IN WITNESS whereof the Parties have executed this Agreement as a Deed the day and year 

first before written. 

 
 
 
EXECUTED as a deed by 
affixing the Common Seal of  
[INSERT NAME OF COUNCIL] 
in the presence of:- 
        Authorised Officer  
 
 
 
 
EXECUTED as a deed by 
[INSERT NAME OF YOUTH ZONE CHARITY] 
acting by a director  
in the presence of:- 

Page 85



23 
 

 
 
Signature of Director: 
 
Signature of witness: 
 
Name (in BLOCK CAPITALS): 
 
Address: 
         
 
 
 
EXECUTED as a deed by 
ONSIDE YOUTH ZONES 
acting by a director 
in the presence of:- 
 
 
Signature of Director: 
 
Signature of witness: 
 
Name (in BLOCK CAPITALS): 
 
Address: 
         
 
 

Page 86



Sensory Garden
50sqm

(D
D

A
)

Vehicle Entrance. 
No Gate

Green Space - Natural wildlife garden

D
ro

p
 O

ff 
(C

a
r 

an
d 

C
oa

ch
e

s)

O
n

e 
W

ay
 S

ys
te

m

B
e
lv

e
d
e
re

 R
o
a
d

External Meeting / Landscaping
Pedestrian Area

Sensory Garden
132 sqm

3
ECS

45

8
9

10
11

12
13

14
15

16
17

18

Entrance

2
ECS

1
(DDA)

7
6

Widened existing footpath

Double pedestrian 
gate with mag-

Lock

New Timber knee 
high timber fence

New Timber knee 
high timber fence

Pedestrian Entrance 1. 
No Gate

Pedestrian Entrance 2. 
No Gate

2.4m high Palisade Fence

2.4m high Palisade 
Fence

2.4m high Palisade 
Fence

Single pedestrian 
gate with mag-

Lock

Single pedestrian 
gate with mag-

Lock

Single pedestrian 
gate with mag-

Lock

Double pedestrian 
gate with mag-

Lock

2.4m high Palisade 
Fence

Double pedestrian 
gate with mag-

Lock

Vehicle Exit. No 
Gate

Pedestrian Entrance 3. 
No Gate

Widened existing footpath

4.5m high sports 
fencing (netting 

above)

4.5m high sports 
fencing (netting 

above)

G
re

en
 S

pa
ce

 / 
N

oi
se

 B
uf

fe
r 

T
B

C

Tel: +XX (X)XXX XXX XXXX
www.studiopower.co.uk

Scale

Checked byDrawn by

DateProject number

Status

Title

Project

Client

Drawing No.

Revision

Copyright © 2022 Studio Power Ltd

The concepts and information contained on this drawing 
are the property of Studio Power Ltd. Use or copying of 

this drawing in whole or in part without the written 
permission constitutes an infringement of copyright. All 

intellectual property rights reserved.

Limitation: This drawing has been prepared on behalf of 
and for the exclusive use of the Client and is subject to 

and issued in connection with the provisions of the 
agreement between Studio Power Ltd and their client. 
Studio Power Ltd accepts no liability or responsibility 
whatsoever for or in respect of any use of or reliance 

upon this drawing by and any third party.

Figured dimensions only to be taken from these designs 
and drawings. Work to annotated dimensions only. All 
dimensions to be checked on site. Studio Power Ltd to 
be informed immediately of any discrepancies before 

work proceeds. Drawings are to be read in conjunction 
with relevant specifications, Structural Engineers / 
Service Engineers and Interior Design drawings. 

NOTES:

Unit 3
3 Crescent
Manchester

M5 4PF

17/08/2022 11:30:47

1 : 500@A2

Site GA

0001

Youth Zone_Salford

08/17/22

MP MP

Information

Onside Youth Zone

0001-SP-XX-00-DR-A-0203
1 : 500

Level 0 Copy 1
1

Rev Description Date By

All trees and landscaping design TBC

P
age 87



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Part 1  
ITEM NO. 
 

 
 __________________________________________________________________  
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 
 __________________________________________________________________  

 
TO PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING 

 

FOR DECISION 28th NOVEMBER 2022 
 __________________________________________________________________  

 
TITLE: Appropriation of land at Ryall Avenue South, Ordsall and The Green, Clifton 
 __________________________________________________________________  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
That the Deputy City Mayor; 
 

1. Notes the current position as set out in this report and the intention to seek 
approval from the grant providers to alternative options for transfer of the land 
at Ryall Avenue South, Ordsall and the land at The Green, Clifton (“the Land”) 

at this time; and 
 

2. Approves the appropriation of the Land from planning to housing purposes to 
facilitate the allocation of completed residential units on the sites for social 
housing by the Council should this become necessary. 

 
 __________________________________________________________________  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 

The sites which are the subject of this report comprise recently developed, formerly 
vacant and underused land held for housing purposes, which had been appropriated 

for planning purposes to facilitate development of a mix of 92 houses and apartments 
for social rent with Homes England funding. 
 

The properties on the Ryall Avenue South and Clifton Green sites are scheduled for 
completion and handover to the Council in November 2022. To date, a definitive date 

for the completion of the registration process for Derive RP has not been forthcoming 
from the Regulator of Social Housing, so a date for the intended onward transfer of 
the completed units to Derive RP is as yet unknown. 

 
As the Council cannot grant secure tenancies of the completed units whilst the land is 

held for planning purposes, the intention is to appropriate the sites back to housing 
purposes, to enable allocation of the completed units for social housing should the 
registration of Dérive RP not be achieved in a timely manner, or if the grant providers 

are not willing to approve transfer prior to registration occurring.  

Page 89

Agenda Item 4a



 
 __________________________________________________________________  

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  None 

 __________________________________________________________________  
 
KEY DECISION: No  

 __________________________________________________________________  
  
1.0 Background 

 
1.1 The sites which are referred to in this report can be summarised as follows. 

 
1.2 Land at Ryall Avenue South, Ordsall comprising 0.48 hectares and developed to 

provide 6 No, two and three bed houses and 35 No apartments in a single block. 
 
1.3 Land at The Green, Clifton comprising 0.75 hectares and developed to provide 

4 No, three and four bed houses and 47 No apartments in 2 blocks. 
 

1.4 The sites are identified on the plans attached at Appendix A. 
 
1.5 The sites have been held for planning purposes since being appropriated in 

February 2021 to facilitate development as part of the Council’s self-build 
residential development programme with the support of a Homes England 

funding award for affordable housing provision. 
 
1.6 This report seeks approval to (should it become necessary) appropriate the Ryall 

Avenue South and Clifton Green sites from planning to housing purposes to 
enable the Council to let them directly to social housing tenants. 

 
2.0 Details 
 

2.1 The 92 units on the Ryall Avenue South and Clifton Green sites are scheduled 
for completion and handover to the Council in November 2022. As a definitive 

date for the completion of the registration process for Derive RP as a registered 
provider of social housing has not as yet been forthcoming from the Regulator of 
Social Housing, and with no indication as to when this might occur, the Council 

will not be in a position to progress the intended onward transfer of the completed 
units to Derive RP on the date of handover. The Council has therefore to consider 

alternative options for holding the completed units from date of handover. This is 
because the terms of the grant funding obtained to develop the housing require 
the properties to be used for social housing as soon as reasonably practicable 

after completion. The Council is also keen to put the properties into use to help 
address social housing needs. 

 
2.2 In the first instance the Council will be engaging in discussions with the grant 

providers for approval to transfer the properties prior to Derive RP being 

accredited as a registered provider, however if it becomes necessary for the 
Council to let the properties directly on secure tenancies, the Council needs to 

hold the land for housing purposes, therefore requiring an appropriation from 

Page 90



planning purposes to housing purposes under section 232(1) of the Town & 
Country Planning Act 1990 and section 19(1) of the Housing Act 1985. This is 

because of the requirement for the Council to account for housing within the 
Housing Revenue Account. 

 
2.3 Appropriation is a term given in local government legislation to an internal Council 

process, designed to allow flexibility in its use of land. It allows a Council to use 

land acquired or held for one purpose to be used for another. 
  
 
3.0 Conclusion 

 

3.1 The Council can review how it intends to hold or transfer the sites once it has an 
indication as to whether the grant providers are willing to agree to an alternative 

disposal at this stage, and/or the timing and outcome of the Derive RP 
registration process has been agreed with the Regulator of Social Housing. 

 

3.2 In the meantime, having approval to appropriate the properties to housing 
purposes if this becomes necessary will mitigate against the risk of grant recall 

and enable the Council to act quickly to put the properties into use within a 
reasonable time of completion. 

 

 
 __________________________________________________________________  

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
 

 Regeneration 

 Affordable housing provision 

 Community cohesion 
 

 __________________________________________________________________  
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  N/A 

 
 __________________________________________________________________  

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: LOW 
 

 __________________________________________________________________  
 

SOURCE OF FUNDING : N/A 
 
 __________________________________________________________________  

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Bevan Brittan LLP 

 
Should it be necessary for the Council to appropriate the properties to housing 
purposes, and to let them directly by way of secure tenancies, this will likely give rise 

to further complications if the properties are then ultimately to be transferred to Derive 

Page 91



RP. This may include requirements to seek Secretary of State consent and to 
undertake consultation, which will delay and/or potentially impede the transfer. 

 
Other legal implications are set out in the body of this report. 

 __________________________________________________________________  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Supplied by David R Mills, Strategic Finance Manager 

 
The Ryall Avenue South and Clifton Green sites for part of the business plan for 
Derive RP Limited and are being built under an agreed capital programme. The 

current business model is being reworked in line with the delay from the regulator to 
give the board of Derive RP Limited options. However, it is important that matters 

progress on these two sites. 
 
26th October 2022. 

 __________________________________________________________________  
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:  
 
There are no specific procurement implications following from the proposals contained 

in this report. 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS: None 
___________________________________________________________________ 

 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 __________________________________________________________________  
 
CONTACT OFFICER: John Nugent, Property Services, 0161 779 6072 

_______________________________________________________ ___________  
 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  Ordsall and Pendlebury 
 __________________________________________________________________  
 

Page 92



92 to 106

W
E

S
T

 C
R

A
V

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

Posts

49

35

41

47

10

14

NAPIER GREEN

29

2

11

1

39

8

53

27

37

12

29

19

14

34 to 38
16

32

H
ol

lie
s 

La
ne

14 to 24 (even)

2

12

181

COLLINGBURN AVENUE

35
 to

 5
7 Agate Mews

5
23

3

16

33

25

17 11

21
29

35

1

2

15

15
11

31

PHOEBE STREET

8

34

26

19

90

29.6m

2

17

1 to 27

1

27

19

35

8
7

28

27

2
1

18

17
25

24

23

20

19

10

9

26

TCB

LB

LE
D

B
R

O
O

K
E

 C
LO

S
E

35

45

R
Y

A
LL

 A
V

E
N

U
E

21

10

42
26

12

K
N

O
W

S
LE

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

29

1

RYALL AVENUE SOUTH

St Joseph's RCPrimary School

E
l S

ub
 S

ta

31

15
11

and Childrens Centre

Community Primary School

Primrose Hill

16

RYALL AVENUE SOUTH

SALFORD

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AW

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:
Area:

1:1250
10/11/2020
SJ8197NE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2020

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



CLIFTON GREEN

Play Area

Church

St Thomas's

THE G
REEN

2

Vicarage

Clifton

1
6

House

1
0

6

2
1

R
ID

G
E

W
A

Y

11

DEWES AVENUE

2

HEYWOOD AVENUE

1
0

228

5
7

4
3

6
3

5
5
a

6
6

9

222

5
0

76.3m

1

5
5

5
5
b

235

214

220

W
H

IT
E

H
E

A
D

 R
O

A
D

74.1m

5
2

4
2

227

TCB

Youth Centre

1

2

42

217

1
a 4

38

3

44

2

36

74.5m

3
a

40

LB

24

FALCON CRESCENT

14

14

ETL

13

26

23

57

5
5

1

1
6

RAKE LANE

2

Sumbland

1
4

2

House

Land at Clifton Green

Property
Services Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AS

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:

1:1250
10/01/2020
SD7802NE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2020

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF  

Lead Members for Adults, Health and Wellbeing and for Housing, 
Property & Regeneration   

 

TO 

Property and Regeneration  

28th November 2022 

 

TITLE: Land at Crompton Street, Walkden & Highfield Road, Little Hulton 
and additional financial support to facilitate the delivery of two 

supported tenancy schemes in Walkden and Little Hulton. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

The City Mayor is recommended to:  
 

Note the proposals below and the terms as set out in the body of this report and note 
that the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval will be 
considered elsewhere on the agenda.  

 
1. Approve the proposed variations to the agreed Heads of Terms for the disposal of the subject 

sites on the terms set out in the report. 
2. Delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Place and the Section 151 officer to negotiate 

and finalise the commercial arrangements and all other necessary ancillary agreements to allow 
the completion of the land disposals as detailed in this report.  

3. Approve the allocation of funding from Salford City Council’s Disabled Facilities Grant allocation 
and an additional contribution from Salford City Council.  

4. Authorise the Shared Legal Service to complete all necessary documentation and to take all 
steps which are required to give effect to the above recommendations. 
 

 

 

Page 97

Agenda Item 4b



 2 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The service and finance strategy for two supported tenancy schemes at Crompton Street in 

Walkden and Highfield Road in Little Hulton, was approved by Adult Commissioning Committee 
in September 2019 (section 1.01). 

 
The two schemes are planned to be developed in the Walkden and Little Hulton areas of Salford 

on land that is owned by the Council. One scheme will accommodate 14 people and will be for 
people currently living in Salford who might be moving through transition arrangements (from 

children’s to adult services) and adults already living in Salford with a learning 
disability/complex need. The second scheme will accommodate 8 people and support the 

repatriation of existing and future out of area placements. The two schemes will also provide a 
total of 12 general needs homes with an option for Derive to purchase five general needs units 

at Crompton St.   
 

To facilitate this City Mayor approved the disposal of the land to Great Places Housing Group 
on 24th August 2020. A copy of the 2020 City Mayor report providing full background to the 

proposals is provided at Annex 2.  
 

Due to financial viability challenges associated with significant build cost inflation the previously 
approved commercial Heads of Terms for the land sales have been subject to renegotiation in 
order to protect scheme delivery. 
 
The total scheme costs and how they will be funded are set out in the Part 2 report. This 
includes funding from Great Places, Homes England, GMCA through the brownfield land fund 
and Salford City Council. 
 
The report seeks approval to the proposed variations to the commercial Heads of Terms and 

the allocation of additional funding to ensure the viability of the scheme.  
 

 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
 
2020 City Mayor Report  

 

 

KEY DECISION: YES 
 

 

Page 98



 3 

 

DETAILS: 
 
1. General  Introduction and Background 

 
1.01 The service and finance strategy for two supported tenancy schemes at Crompton 

Street in Walkden and Highfield Road in Little Hulton, was approved by Adult Commissioning 
Committee in September 2019: 

 
Agenda for Adult Commissioning Committee on Wednesday, 11 September 2019, 3.00 pm • 

Salford City Council 
 

1.02 In summary the strategy set out that Salford City Council and CCG (as was), working 
with Salford Care Organisation (part of the Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust) and 

Great Places Housing proposed to develop two specialist Supported Housing schemes to deliver 
additional capacity to support people with a learning disability and complex needs to live 

independently with support to meet their care needs in a Salford ‘home’.  
 

1.03 The report set out a service and financial feasibility assessment of the proposal that 
appraised the strategic appropriateness, financial viability, quality and anticipated outcomes of 
the service and accommodation model for the Salford care system, and Salford people who 

might be supported through this proposal.  
 

1.04 The two schemes are planned to be developed in the Walkden and Little Hulton areas 
of Salford on land that is owned by the Council. One scheme will accommodate 14 people and 

will be for people currently living in Salford who might be moving through transition 
arrangements (from children’s to adult services) and adults already living in Salford with a 

learning disability/complex need. The second scheme will accommodate 8 people and support 
the repatriation of existing and future out of area placements. Salford City Council will hold 

nominations rights on both schemes for the stated accommodation and service commissioning 
purpose of the schemes. 

 
1.05 The quality impact of the schemes will be positive and provide people with more 

targeted support as well as allowing Salford people to move back into the city. The 
accommodation will be accessible, adapted, technology enabled, and purpose built around the 

needs of the people who will live in the schemes. 
 
1.06 The financial impact of the schemes shows a potential annual cashable cost saving of 
(excluding growth) based on full occupancy.  
 
1.07 Due to the impact of Covid 19 and rising construction costs the build programme, 
anticipated to commence during 2020 was delayed. The significant build cost inflation has led 

to a number of financial viability challenges. The previously approved commercial Heads of 
Terms for the land transactions have been subject to renegotiation in order to protect scheme 
delivery. The primary variations are in relation to land price and lease terms length following 
detailed viability review and the consideration of relevant market evidence. It is now 

Page 99

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=254&MId=2273&Ver=4
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=254&MId=2273&Ver=4


 4 

anticipated that, subject to final approvals, the build programme will commence later in 2022 
and take 12-18 months to deliver. 

 
1.08  The development will be subject to an open book review upon completion and should 

costs savings be made against current forecasts these will be passed onto the City Council in 
full. 

1.09  In addition to the reduced land price we have also provisionally agreed the grant of a 
longer 999-year lease term to enable prospective purchasers of the Shared Ownership homes 

to access Help to Buy funding. 
 

1.10  Derive also have an option to acquire the five social rent affordable units – a mix of 2 
and 3 bed homes - being delivered on the Crompton Street site. Great Places have provided a 
cost for the purchase of these five homes, but the scheme does not stack up financially for 
Derive at a social or affordable rent with working capital required from Derive to support the 
scheme. It is unlikely, unless costs are significantly reduced that Derive will be in a position to 

purchase these units. 
 

1.11 Commissioners are required to draw up service specifications for the Care Quality 
Commission regulated care service at both schemes and Salford Care Organisation will be 

responsible for running the procurement process. This process will take place alongside the 
build programme. 

 
1.12 Two options were considered in the strategy proposal, option one being a ‘do nothing’ 

scenario and option two was the scheme and service development proposal. Option two was 
approved by Adult Commissioning Committee in September 2019 on the basis of increased 

service quality/improved outcomes for people and that potential to secure cashable savings 
over time. 

 
1.13 Both schemes have secured planning approval: 

 
Highfield Road Planning Approval – June 2021 

 
(Public Pack)Agenda Document for Planning and Transportation Regulatory Panel, 03/06/2021 
09:30 (salford.gov.uk) 
 
Crompton Street Planning Approval – March 2022 
 
Division (salford.gov.uk) 
 
2. Capital  Strategy Position 
 
2.01 The total scheme costs and how they will be funded are set out in the Part 2 report. 

Costs have increased significantly as a result of build cost inflation and additional 
funding sources have had to be identified to ensure a viable scheme. The funding will 

come from a variety from Great Places, Homes England, GMCA through the brownfield 
land fund and Salford City Council and   

 

Page 100

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g4533/Public%20reports%20pack%20Thursday%2003-Jun-2021%2009.30%20Planning%20and%20Transportation%20Regulatory%20Panel.pdf?T=10
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g4533/Public%20reports%20pack%20Thursday%2003-Jun-2021%2009.30%20Planning%20and%20Transportation%20Regulatory%20Panel.pdf?T=10
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/s45058/5a%2021%2076773%20FUL%20Crosby%20Avenue%20Crompton%20Street.pdf


 5 

3. DFG - Introduction 
 

3.01 The Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) is ring-fenced capital funding for the provision of 
home adaptations to help older and disabled people to live as independently and safely as 

possible in their homes. Where agreed locally a portion of the grant may also be used for wider 
social care capital projects 

 
3.02 Home adaptations are changes made to the fabric and fixtures of a home to make it 

safer and easier to get around and to use for everyday tasks like cooking and bathing. Adapting 
a home environment can help restore or enable independent living, privacy, confidence and 

dignity for individuals and their families. Adaptations can include the installation of stair-lifts, 
level access showers and wet-rooms, wash and dry toilets, ramps, wider doors, and, in some 
instances, bespoke home extensions to existing dwellings as well as improvements to access to 
and from gardens. Heating systems, insulation and telecare and assistive technology (where it 
is capital) can be other forms of adaptations. 

 
3.03 Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) are capital grants that are available to people of all ages 

and in all housing tenures (i.e. whether renting privately, from a social landlord or council, or 
owner-occupiers) to contribute to the cost of adaptations. They are administered by local 

housing authorities in England and enable eligible disabled people to continue living sa fely and 
independently at home. This includes people with autism, those with a mental health condition, 

physical disabilities, learning disabilities, cognitive impairments such as dementia, and 
progressive conditions such as Motor Neurone Disease. It includes those living with age-related 

disabilities and can also include those with terminal illness. The DFG is one of a range of housing 
support measures that a local authority can use to help enable people to live independently 

and safely at home and in their communities. 
 

3.04 The latest published DFG guidance (March 2022) advises local authorities in England 
how they can effectively and efficiently deliver DFG funded adaptations to best serve the needs 

of local older and disabled people. It does not make changes in policy, but instead brings 
together and sets out in one place existing policy frameworks, legislative duties, and powers, 

together with recommended best practice, to help local authorities provide a best practice 
adaptation service to disabled tenants and residents in their area. 
 
3.05 A suitable home can help disabled people of all ages to build and sustain their 
independence and maintain connections in their community. There are currently many older 
and disabled people living in homes that make it difficult for them to do everyday tasks like 
washing and using the bathroom, cooking or getting out and about easily. Homes may be poorly 
designed for older age or changes in care and support needs. In 2019-20, around 1.9 million 
households in England had one or more people with a health condition that required 
adaptations to their home. 
 
3.06 DFG enables more people to live independently and healthily in their own homes for 
longer, with fewer people staying in hospital unnecessarily or moving to residential care 

prematurely when that is not where they want to live. Adaptations can reduce the amount of 
formal care and support an individual may require, as well as often making the difference 

between being able to continue living in their current home or not. 

Page 101



 6 

 
3.07 Since 2015, Government has provided funding for the DFG through the Better Care 

Fund (BCF) in recognition of the importance of ensuring adaptations are part of an integrated 
approach to housing, health and social care locally, and to help promote joined up local person-

centred approaches to supporting communities. 
 

3.08 A portion of DFG funding can be retained to pay for social care and housing capital 
elements of joined up health, social care and housing projects. Local authorities and local health 

and care commissioners can also choose to add to Government funding for home adaptations 
from their own budgets. 

 
3.09 Local Authorities may decide to spend Government funding for the DFG in three ways: 
 

• Approving DFGs in accordance with the Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration 
Act 1996 (the 1996 Act) (see Appendix B: The legislation) 

 
• Providing housing assistance in accordance with a locally published Housing Assistance 

Policy under RRO powers (see Chapter 3:). 
 

• Using a portion of the DFG funding for other social care capital funding purposes. 
 

3.10 Local Authorities can apply a mix of these options to meet local priorities but should 
consider that: 

 
• the local housing authority has a statutory duty under the 1996 Act to provide 

adaptations for those who qualify for a DFG. 
 

• the primary role of Government funding is for the provision of home adaptations to 
help eligible people safely access their home and key facilities within it. Government 

funding is via a capital grant so must not be used for any revenue purposes. Local 
authorities are responsible for correctly classifying expenditure in their statutory 

accounts.  
 

• Government funding for the Disabled Facilities Grant is intended to fund adaptations 
for owner occupiers, private tenants, or tenants of private registered providers (housing 
associations). Eligible council tenants can apply for a DFG in the same way as any other 
applicant. However local housing authorities with a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
should self-fund home adaptations for council tenants through this account. A provision 
was made for expenditure in the HRA as a 'Disabled Facilities Allowance' in the 2012-13 
self-financing settlement, alongside information on how to calculate it in subsequent 
years. The same applies to applications from tenants living in dwellings managed by an 
Arms-Length Management Organisation (ALMO) but owned by the local authority. 

 
3.11 Where a portion of the DFG funding is used for other social care capital projects this 

must be agreed as part of, and spent in accordance with, the approved local BCF spending plan 
that was developed in keeping with the BCF Policy Framework and Planning Requirements.  

 

Page 102



 7 

3.12 Local authorities are encouraged to consider the level of demand for adaptations locally 
and use this freedom only to fund wider projects which are likely to reduce overall demand for 

DFGs, so that more people can receive the adaptations that they need. Good examples of wider 
social care capital projects include improving toilet/showering facilities in temporary 

accommodation to help support disabled people including those sleeping rough, or 
contributing to the cost of building accessible housing for disabled people in circumstances 

where this would be more cost effective than adapting a current property.  
 

4. Common parts 
 

4.01 DFG applications can be made to fund adaptations to the common parts of buildings 
containing one or more flats. This can include the structure and exterior of the building, routine 
parts of the building such as the front door and paths, as well as common interior areas of the 
building including emergency/fire exits, stairwells and passageways.  
 

5. DFG Submission 
 

5.01 Great Places Housing Association has submitted a DFG application to Salford City 
Council for consideration against the terms and national guidance for DFG, for the two 

supported tenancy scheme proposals at Highfield Road and Crompton Street.  
 

5.02 Great Places has completed a detailed appraisal of the scheme plans and set out those 
elements of the plans that are applicable for consideration for DFG funding.  

 
5.03 As noted above (section 3) the terms of the DFG grant, which is allocated as part of the 

Better Care Fund, also requires local authorities to note any plan to use the DFG to support 
‘other social care capital projects’ in the local Better Care Fund spending plan. This DFG 

application has been included in Salford’s Better Care Fund spending plan for 2022/23.  
 

5.04 This application has been reviewed by Salford City Council officers and it is confirmed 
that the application meets the terms of the DFG grant conditions and associated national 

guidance. Council officers are recommending that the DFG grant application is approved.  
 
6.  Additional  Capital  balance  
 
6.01 It is proposed that the remaining deficit will be split between Great Places Housing 
Group and Salford City Council on a 50:50 basis.    
 
7. Head Of Terms 
 
7.01 Due to financial viability challenges associated with significant build cost inflation the  

previously approved commercial Heads of Terms for the land transactions have been subject 

to renegotiation in order to protect scheme delivery. The primary variations are in relation to 

land price and lease terms length.  

 

7.02 Following detailed viability review and the consideration of relevant market evidence 

Page 103



 8 

Property Services have provisionally agreed a variation to the previously approved sale price.  

Full details are provided in Part 2 version of the report.  

 

7.03 The development will be subject to an open book review upon completion and should 

costs savings be made against current forecasts these will be passed onto the City Council in 

full.  
  

7.04 In addition to the reduced land price we have also provisionally agreed the grant of a  

longer 999-year lease term to enable prospective purchasers of the Shared Ownership homes 

to access Help to Buy funding. 

 

7.05 Contractual provisions on use will also ensure that all the units/dwellings will be 
delivered as Supported or Affordable Housing units, with the mix to be agreed with the City 
Council’s Housing, this provides suitable assurances on the future use of the homes to the 
Intended purpose as set out in this report and will protect the Council financial investment into 
the delivery of the scheme 
 
 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
Integrated Care 

Regeneration 
Great 8 - Housing  

Great 8 - Economic Development 
 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N.A. 
There are no equality impact issues arising directly as a consequence of this report.   

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
Medium:  
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Provided in the Part 2 version of the report. 

 
 

Page 104



 9 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
 
Provided in the Part 2 version of the report 

 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N.A. 
There are no procurement considerations associated with the proposed variation to the 
commercial Heads of Terms. 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N.A. 
There are no HR implications arising from this proposal. 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N.A. 
There are no Climate Change considerations associated with the proposed variation to the 
commercial Heads of Terms 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

Place 
 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Paul Walsh  TEL NO: 0161 793 2202  
 

 
 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Walkden and Little Hulton 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST - CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
 
Name of Report:   

Ryall Avenue South, Ordsall and The 
Green, Clifton  

 

 
Committee: 

Property/Regeneration Briefing   
Date  28 November  

 
Category of exemption applied:  Paragraph 3  Information relating to the 

financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority 
holding that information ) 

 
 
Public Interest Test Questionnaire 

This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 

debate about current issues? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 

certain decisions?  
 

 

Yes 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 

 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  

 
 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 

decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 
 

No 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 

safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   

 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-

making or examples of malpractice? 
 
 

No 

 

 
 

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 6a



 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 

public any useful information? 
 

 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information?  
 

 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation? 

 
 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 

public useful information?  
 
 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 

at risk?  
 

 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld?  
 

  

Yes 

 

Justification of decision 

(Please provide explicit reasoning) 

 

Disclosure before the completion of the transaction would be inappropriate as it 

would disclose confidential information and is likely to adversely affect the 
financial position of the Council and the interested parties. 

Other documents attached: N/A 

Name and Title: John Nugent, Asst Principal Development Surveyor 

Date: 15 November 2022 
 

 

Page 108



Document is Restricted

Page 109

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST - CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
 
Name of Report: 

Land at Crompton Street, Walkden 
and Highfield Road, Little Hulton and 

Associated Supported Tenancy 
Schemes 

 
Committee Property and Regeneration 

Briefing  
Date 28 November 2022 

 

Category of exemption applied:  
 

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 

The report contains commercially sensitive information that would prejudice the 
interests of the Council if the information were to be disclosed at this time. 

 
 
Public Interest Test Questionnaire 

This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 

debate about current issues? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 

certain decisions?  
 

 

Yes 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 

 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  

 
 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 

decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 
 

No 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 

safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   

 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-

making or examples of malpractice? 
 

No 

Page 111

Agenda Item 6b



 

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 

occurred? 
 
 

No 

 

 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information? 

 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 

without giving the public any useful information?  
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation? 
 

 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information?  

 
 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk?  

 
 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 

benefit more from information being withheld?  
 
  

Yes 

 

Justification of decision 

Disclosure would reveal financial arrangements between the Council and a third 
party and would be tenant that would be detrimental to those parties interests. 

 

A summary of the information contained in the Part 2 report has been provided in 

the associated Part 1 report to ensure transparency on the decision being taken 
as far as is possible. 

 

 

Other documents available: n/a 

 

Page 112



Name and Title: Paul Walsh, Asst Director Joint Commissioning 
 

Date: 15 November 2022 

 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 115

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Salford Youth Zone Project
	03aii Appendix 1- Summary of agreements
	ONSIDE YOUTH ZONES - SUMMARY PAPER
	AGREEING THE LEGAL RELATIONSHIPS & STRUCTURES

	03aiii Appendix 2 - Sale Heads of Terms
	03aiv Appendix 3 - Development agreement
	[Insert name of relevant Council]
	and
	[Insert name of relevant Youth Zone Charity]
	ONSIDE YOUTH ZONES
	DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	(Incorporating Building Licence and Agreement for Lease)
	1. INTERPRETATION
	“Act” means the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended);
	“Adjoining Premises” means such part of the public highways known as [insert name(s) of street(s) as appropriate] adjoining the Property as are in the ownership or control of the Council as landowner;
	"FOIA" means the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and any subordinate legislation made under it from time to time
	"Force Majeure" means any one or more of the following:
	(a) fire;
	(b) storm or other exceptionally adverse weather conditions;
	(c) war, hostilities, rebellion, insurrection, military or usurped power or civil war;
	(d) labour lockouts, strikes or other industrial disputes;
	(e) riot, terrorist action, commotion, disorder;
	(f) decree of government;
	(g) non-availability of labour, materials or equipment;
	(h) adverse ground conditions
	"Insured Risks" means the risks of:
	(a) fire, subterranean fire, lightning, storm, tempest, flood and explosion;
	(b) bursting or overflowing of water tanks, apparatus or pipes or the escape of water from any of them;
	(c) aircraft or other aerial devices or articles dropped or falling from any of them;
	(d) riot, civil commotion and malicious damage;


	“Plan” means the plan marked “[insert relevant plan reference]” attached to this Agreement;
	“Planning Application” means the application to the Council for the Planning Permission under Application Number [insert appropriate reference] ;
	"Prohibited Materials" means any products, substances or materials or any combination of them which at the time of specification are specified as deleterious materials in the Building Contract or which otherwise:-
	(a) do not conform with British or European Standards or Codes of Practice or  the recommendations of the Building Research Establishment; and
	(b) are generally known to the building profession to be deleterious to health and safety, the performance or durability of buildings or structures or damaging to the environment in the particular circumstances in which they are specified to be used o...

	“VAT Act” means the Value Added Tax Act 1994;
	“Works” means the works necessary for carrying out and completing the Development including the Section 38/278 Works;
	CONDITIONS
	2.4     If the Conditions have not been satisfied or waived under the terms of this Agreement on or before the Planning Permission Longstop Date, the Funding Longstop Date or the Licence Commencement Date (as applicable), the Council or the Developer ...
	2.5 If any of such Parties serves a valid notice on the other Parties under clause 2.4 then this Agreement shall terminate on the expiration of such notice and Commercial Condition 9.2 will apply and the Developer will remove any entries lodged at the...
	4.5       Without prejudice to the provisions of clauses 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14 and 28 the licence(s) granted by clause 4.1 will not confer on the Developer or any other person any legal or equitable right, title, interest or estate in the Property.
	4.6      The licence(s) granted by clause 4.1 will end on the earlier of the following dates:
	4.6.1 the date on which this Agreement is terminated or;
	4.6.2 the Completion Date.

	4.7 When the licence granted by clause 4.1 ends then, unless completion of the Lease has taken place, the Developer is to procure that the Property is vacated by all persons and that all vehicles, plant, equipment and materials belonging to those pers...
	4.7.1 the Council may dispose of them as agent(s) for the Developer;
	4.7.2 the Developer shall indemnify the Council against any liability to any third party whose property has been sold in the mistaken but bona fide belief (which shall be presumed unless the opposite is proved) that the items in question belonged to t...
	4.7.3 the Council shall use any proceeds of sale to defray any reasonable costs properly incurred in connection with the removal, storage and sale of such items and to discharge any other sums which are still due to the Council under the terms of this...
	4.7.4 the Council shall account to the Developer for any subsequent balance, unless more than 3 months have elapsed since the date of any sale and the Council has been unable to locate the Developer, in which case the Council may keep any balance proc...


	5.3 The Developer shall carry out and complete or procure the completion of the Development in accordance with the Development Plans and Specifications and the Planning Permission subject to all Consents from time to time necessary being obtained and ...
	5.4 If the Developer shall procure the construction of a compound within the boundaries of the Property for the storage of materials and erection of site huts and offices (subject to the Developer having first obtained all necessary Consents) then the...
	5.5 The Developer shall be responsible for all costs incurred in connecting to the main services as directed by the respective statutory undertakers during the carrying out of the Works.
	5.6 The Developer shall be responsible for all costs it incurs in connection with the Works and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing the Developer shall be responsible for all costs incurred if the Developer decides to divert any exist...
	7. CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY AND ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
	7.2.1 In this clause "Competent Authority" means any government body, the Environment Agency, court, tribunal or other body deriving power under Environmental Laws.
	7.2.2  The Developer agrees that the apportionment by a Competent Authority of any liabilities that may arise under Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (as amended) ("Part IIA") in respect of pollution or contamination present in on or u...
	7.2.3 It is hereby acknowledged and intended by the Developer that sub-clause 7.2.2 is an agreement on liabilities for the purposes of Part IIA.
	7.2.4 The Developer agrees that in the event of a notification being served on it which indicates that the Property is or is likely to be determined ‘contaminated land’ under Part IIA to notify the Council as soon as is reasonably practicable.
	7.2.5 The Developer undertakes to furnish the Competent Authority with a copy of this Agreement as soon as is reasonably practicable after receiving a note from the Competent Authority or a notification under sub-clause 7.2.4 and agrees to the applica...
	7.2.6 The Developer hereby undertakes to use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that the Competent Authority applies the agreement on liabilities set out in sub-clause 7.2.2
	7.2.7 For the avoidance of doubt the Council and the Developer shall retain the right to appeal against a decision of a Competent Authority in accordance with Part IIA’s appeal procedure.
	7.2.8  The Developer hereby undertakes to indemnify the Council and keep the Council indemnified in respect of all and any fines, penalties, charges, actions, losses, costs, claims, expenses, demands, duties, obligations, damages and other liabilities...
	7.2.8.1 as a result of any failure of the Developer to adhere to the provisions of sub-clause 7.2.2; or
	7.2.8.2 arising from any pollution or contamination present in or under or (where due to the actions of the Developer) originating from the Property.


	8. GRANT OF THE LEASE AND COMPLETION OF THE OPERATIONAL AGREEMENT
	8.1 Subject to Practical Completion of the Development being achieved by the Development Longstop Date the Council will grant and the Developer will accept the Lease.
	8.2 Subject to completion of the grant of the Lease the Developer, the Council and OnSide will enter into the Operational Agreement.
	9. COMPLETION
	10. TITLE GUARANTEE
	11. DEDUCING TITLE
	13. VACANT POSSESSION
	14. MATTERS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY
	15. INSURANCE
	15.1  It is agreed that the risk of damage to or loss or destruction of the Property, including all buildings, fixtures, fittings, plant and equipment, passes to the Developer on the Licence Commencement Date and the Developer is to insure the Propert...
	15.1.1 in its full reinstatement cost;
	15.1.2 against the Insured Risks (where appropriate to do so having regard to the Works);
	15.1.3 with reputable insurance offices in or having a business office in the United Kingdom or through underwriters at Lloyd’s; and
	15.1.4 on reasonable commercial terms and subject only to reasonable excesses, exclusions and conditions of such cover.

	15.2  The Developer is to use all reasonable and commercially sensible endeavours to procure that any exclusion in respect of terrorist activity is removed from the insurance maintained under clause 15.1.
	15.3  The Developer is to use all reasonable and commercially sensible endeavours to procure that the insurers of the Property and the Works under clause 15.1 undertakes with the Council not to cancel the insurance without first giving to the Council ...
	15.4   The Developer is to provide the Council with:
	15.4.1 a copy of the insurance policy maintained under clause 15.1 and evidence for the payment of the premium for the insurance;
	15.4.2 evidence of its renewal when reasonably requested by the Council; and
	15.4.3  any endorsements or other amendments to the relevant policies of insurance or of any notification or other correspondence relating to or affecting the Property or the Works sent to or received from the insurers.

	15.5 If the Property or the Works are damaged or destroyed by any of the Insured Risks:
	15.5.1 the Developer is to use reasonable and commercially sensible endeavours promptly to obtain the maximum payment of insurance moneys;
	15.5.2 all insurance monies received by the Developer shall be used by the Developer to rebuild, repair or otherwise reinstate the Property and the Works in a good and substantial manner in accordance with the terms of this Agreement to the reasonable...

	15.6 During the carrying out of the Development, the Developer (or the Building Contractor) is to maintain public liability insurance against liability to the public and to third parties in such sum as may be prudent but being for not less than £5,00...
	15.7 If the Developer does not insure or procure all or any of the insurances required by this clause 15 or fails to produce reasonable evidence that such insurances are in force, the Council may itself effect such insurance cover as it may consider p...
	15.8 The Developer shall procure that the interest of the Council is noted on the insurance maintained under clause 15.1.

	16. VAT
	17. DETERMINATION OF DISPUTES
	22. CONTINUATION OF THIS AGREEMENT
	23. REPRESENTATIONS ETC.
	25. CONFIDENTIALITY CLAUSE
	25.1 Except to the extent set out in this clause or where disclosure is expressly permitted elsewhere in this Agreement, each Party shall:
	25.1.1 treat any financial information in relation to the Development (“Confidential Information”) as confidential and safeguard it accordingly;
	25.1.2 not disclose the Confidential Information to any other person without the prior written consent of the other Parties.
	25.2.1  such disclosure is a requirement of law placed upon a Party making the disclosure, including any requirements for disclosure under the FOIA pursuant to clause 24;
	25.2.2 such information was in the possession of the Party making the disclosure without obligation of confidentiality prior to its disclosure by the information owner;
	25.2.3 such information was obtained from a third party without obligation of confidentiality; or
	25.2.4 such information was already in the public domain at the time of disclosure otherwise than by a breach of this agreement;
	25.2.5 such information is required to be registered at the Land Registry to the extent necessary to effect noting or registration at the Land Registry by means only of a Unilateral Notice but without sending this Agreement or any copy of it to the La...
	25.2.6 such information is required for HM Revenue and Customs or the rating authority;
	25.2.7  such information is required to the extent necessary to comply with statutory obligations;
	25.2.8 such information is required for audit purposes;
	25.2.9 such information is required to the extent ordered to do so by the court or any other competent authority

	25.3  The Parties hereto may only disclose the Confidential Information to those persons that it employs or engages directly involved in the provision of the Development and who need to know the information, and shall ensure that such persons are awar...

	26    DEVELOPER’S INDEMNITY
	26.1  The Developer is to indemnify the Council in respect of any of the following matters arising directly or indirectly in relation to the Works, the Property or any operations on the Property save where attributable to the action of the Council or ...
	(a)  the death of, injury to or accident to any person;
	(b)  the damage to or loss of any property;
	(c)  any breach of any statutory consents or statutory requirements;
	(d) the infringement of the rights of any third party  caused by the carrying out of the Works;
	(e)  any nuisance or disturbance suffered by any third party caused by the carrying out of the Works;
	(f) any fine or penalty; and
	(g)  any other third party claims.


	27.  DEALINGS
	This Agreement is incapable of being assigned, held on trust or in any way being dealt with by the Developer save with the written consent of the Council.

	28.   COMMERCIAL CONDITIONS
	28.1   The Commercial Conditions are incorporated into this Agreement except insofar as any of them are inconsistent with or varied by any express terms of this Agreement.
	28.2   In addition to any modifications set out elsewhere in this Agreement the Commercial Conditions are amended as set out in the Fifth Schedule.
	29. PUBLICITY
	The Parties agree that no Party shall issue a press or media briefing, statement or announcement in respect of the Development or this Agreement or any matters relating to this Agreement without first consulting with all the other Parties and obtaini...

	THE FIRST SCHEDULE
	Draft Lease
	1 Exclusion of Commercial Conditions
	Commercial Conditions 2.2, 6.1.1, 6.3.2, 6.6.2, 8.1.1, 8.3.7, 10.2.4 and 10.3.5 are excluded.
	2.         Variation of Commercial Conditions
	2.1. Commercial Condition 8.3.2 reads “Apportionment is to be made with effect from the date of actual completion.”
	2.2. Commercial Condition 9.2(b) reads “The Developer is to return any documents received from the Council and is to cancel any registration of the contract within 14 days and if the Developer fails to do so the Council’s solicitors may do so on its b...
	2.3. In Commercial Condition 9.3.2, the words “between completion date and actual completion” are replaced by “from and including the completion date to and including actual completion”.
	2.4. Standard Condition 3.1.2 will have added to it a new sub clause 3.1.2(f) which shall read:
	“Any unregistered interests which override:
	2.4.1. first registration under schedule 1 Land Registration Act 2002
	2.4.2. registered dispositions under schedule 3 Land Registration Act 2002 or
	2.4.3. either of them under schedule 12 Land Registration Act 2002”

	The covenants implied under section 2(1)(b) Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 are varied by the replacement of the words “at his own cost” by the words “at the cost of the person requiring compliance with this covenant”.
	1.2.3. the Planning Application shall first be submitted to the Council and such application and all amendments thereto shall be approved (with their accompanying plans) in writing by the Council as landowner (marked for the attention of [insert title...


	03av Appendix 4 - operational agreement
	1.2 The interpretation and construction of this Agreement shall be subject to the following provisions:-
	Council’s Obligations
	OnSide's Obligations
	XYZ’s Obligations
	7 Notices
	8 Prevention of Corruption
	9 Discrimination

	15 Liabilities and Indemnities
	15.1 Each Party agrees to fully and promptly indemnify the other Parties against all losses (other than consequential loss), damages, costs, expenses, liabilities, claims or proceedings, whether these arise under statute or common law, (together refer...
	15.2 A Party will not be liable to indemnify the other Parties as set out in clause 15.1 to the extent that any losses are due to any negligence, default or breach of statutory duty on the other Party’s part, or on the part of any of its employees act...
	15.3 A Party’s liability for any losses which relate to death or personal injury caused by any action or activity of any person it is legally responsible for shall be unlimited.
	21 Counterparts
	22 The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

	24.4      Nothing in this Agreement shall create, or be deemed to create, a partnership, or the  relationship of principal and agent, between the Parties.
	24.6     Each Party shall from time to time do all such acts and execute all such documents  as may be reasonably necessary in order to give effect to the provisions of this  Agreement.


	03avi Appendix 5 - Plan
	Sheets
	0203 - Site GA



	4a Ryall Avenue South, Ordsall and The Green, Clifton (see item 6a)
	04aii Appx A Ryall Avenue South Plan
	04aiii Appx B Clifton Green Plan

	4b Land at Crompton Street, Walkden and Highfield Road, Little Hulton and Associated Supported Tenancy Schemes (see item 6b)
	6a Ryall Avenue South, Ordsall and The Green, Clifton
	06b Ryall Avenue South and The Green

	6b Land at Crompton Street, Walkden and Highfield Road, Little Hulton and Associated Supported Tenancy Schemes
	06c Land at Crompton Street Walkden & Highfield Road Little Hulton


